COUNCIL ROCK SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROGRAM PLANNING GUIDE 2019-2020

COUNCIL ROCK HIGH SCHOOL NORTH COUNCIL ROCK HIGH SCHOOL SOUTH

Council Rock School District
The Chancellor Center
30 N. Chancellor Street
Newtown, PA 18940

(215) 944-1000

COUNCIL ROCK HIGH SCHOOLS - ADMINISTRATION AND COUNSELORS

Council Rock High School South

(215) 944-1187

(215) 944-1189

(215) 944-1190

(215) 944-1186

(215) 944-1300		(215) 944-1100
Administrators		Administrators	
Susan C. McCarthy Robert J. Findlay Daniel L. Griesbaum	Principal Assistant Principal Assistant Principal	Albert R. Funk Lynn R. Cariello Susan Gormley	Principal Assistant Principal Assistant Principal
Nathan C. Scott Jason Traczykiewicz	Assistant Principal Assistant Principal	Scott Layer John Radick	Assistant Principal Assistant Principal
Counselors	(215) 044 1210	Counselors Meghan Bradley	(215) 944-1188
Teresa Callanan Joseph DeFrancesco	(215) 944-1319 (215) 944-1322	Beth DiGuiseppe	(215) 944-1191
Joseph DeMaio Debra Maccarella	(215) 944-1326 (215) 944-1324	Jennifer Howard Laura Strenge	(215) 944-1192 (215) 944-1193

Council Rock High School North

(215) 944-1324

(215) 944-1327

(215) 944-1320

(215) 944-1323

Debra Maccarella

Cristina Rabayda

Timothy Rothrock

Abby Rogers

Newtown Middle School (215) 944-2600		Но	Holland Middle School (215) 944-2700	
Administrators		Administrators		
Timothy A. Long	Principal	Richard Hollahan	Principal	
Zachery Vile	Assistant Principal	Tim Keddie	Assistant Principal	
Counselors		Counselors		
Steven Einhorn	(215) 944-2623	Caroline Brewer	(215) 944-2722	
Laura Roberts-Sampson	(215) 944-2621	Donna Lanatto	(215) 944-2721	
Ann Naragon	(215) 944-2622	Olena Handley	(215) 944-2723	

Jennifer Nicholl

Lauren Persson

Nicole Ventresca

Lori Solit

COUNCIL ROCK SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF SCHOOL DIRECTORS

Andy Block

Denise Brooks

Mark Byelich

Jerold S. Grupp

Joseph L. Hidalgo

Kristin Marcell

Mariann Mc Kee

Edward Tate, III

Michael Thorwart, PhD

Council Rock School District is an equal opportunity education institution and will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex or handicap in its activities, programs, or employment practices as required by Title VI, Title IX, and Section 504.

For information regarding civil rights or grievance procedures, contact the Superintendent of Schools. For information regarding services, activities and facilities that are accessible to and usable by handicapped persons, contact the Director of Administrative Services, (Title IX and Section 504 coordinator). The Council Rock School District Administration Offices are located at The Chancellor Center, 30 N. Chancellor Street, Newtown, PA 18940. The district telephone number is (215) 944-1000.

Table of Contents

FOREWORD TO STUDENTS AND PARENTS	5
COUNCIL ROCK HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS	5
Grades 9, 10, 11, 12	5
State and Federal Accountability Requirements	6
Classroom Reading Materials	6
Consumable Materials Guidelines	6
Grading and Marking System	6
Rank-in-Class Guidelines and Grade Point Average	7
Grade Point Average	7
Rank-in-Class	7
GUIDELINES FOR PROGRAM PLANNING	7
Course Override Process	8
Schedule Change Procedure	8
SPECIAL CURRICULUM FEATURES	9
Alternate Day Courses	9
STEM Pathways	10
ALTERNATIVE PROGRAMS	10
Advanced Placement Program	11
Cooperative Education	11
Gifted Program	11
Honors Courses	12
Virtual Course	12
Special Education	12
Library Media Center	12
MIDDLE BUCKS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY	12
Variety of Career Development Experiences	12
Admission	13
The Educational Program	13

Assessment	13
Alternative Programs for High School Credit	14
BCCC High School Enrichment Program	14
College Accelerated Program	14
Dual Enrollment	15
Early Graduation	15
NCAA Athletic Eligibility (+)	15
Service Learning	16
COURSE OFFERINGS	17
ART	19
BUSINESS, COMPUTERS & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (BCIT)	25
ENGLISH	29
FAMILY & CONSUMER SCIENCES	38
HEALTH	41
MATHEMATICS	42
MUSIC	49
PHYSICAL EDUCATION	52
PUBLICATION DESIGN	54
SCIENCE	55
SOCIAL SCIENCE	62
GIFTED PROGRAMS	68
TECHNOLOGY EDUCATION	69
WORLD LANGUAGE	74
2019 DATES TO REMEMBER	
COUNCIL ROCK HIGH SCHOOL NORTH	

See the Council Rock website for an electronic copy of this booklet.

FOREWORD TO STUDENTS AND PARENTS

Students will soon be selecting a program of studies for **2019-2020**. This is an especially important task that will involve some significant decisions and choices. It is also imperative that the courses selected are consistent with future educational and vocational goals.

To be of assistance with this planning, the following activities are scheduled:

- 1. Discussion in classrooms of course offerings in each academic area.
- 2. Special presentations by teachers and department coordinators regarding specific courses and programs.
- 3. An evening meeting for parents to give an overview of the educational program at the high school.
- 4. Student conferences with counselors to discuss and select courses. Counselors are also available to discuss course selection with parents at their request.

Caution can be an important ingredient in the selection process. A student's study habits and skills are not likely to change drastically over the summer or as a result of entering the next grade level. The schedule of courses should be challenging enough to encourage academic growth, but not so demanding that the student becomes overwhelmed and discouraged. Students have four years in which to fulfill graduation and post high school entrance requirements or gain entry level job skills.

Students will choose a program in January/February and bring a copy home for parents to review and sign. In addition, a listing of requested courses will be available on the Home Access Center. You are advised to read carefully the Guidelines for Program Planning and the Schedule Change Procedure. Course changes after the initial selections made in January/February become increasingly difficult to make. Therefore, the attention to planning a program at this time is extremely important.

Please note that although a wide variety of courses are described in each academic area in this booklet; it is possible that certain courses could be cancelled, closed, or offered through virtual learning/shuttle courses depending on enrollment and/or district resources.

COUNCIL ROCK HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

Grades 9, 10, 11, 12

A minimum of 23 credits must be satisfactorily completed in grades 9, 10, 11, and 12 to qualify for a Council Rock High School diploma. The credits must include:

ENGLISH: 4 credits

This requirement includes 1 credit of English 9, 1 credit of English 10, 1 credit of English 11 and 1 credit of an elective.

SOCIAL STUDIES: 3 credits

This requirement includes 2 credits of American Civilization, and 1 credit of World History.

ARTS AND HUMANITIES: 2 credits

Arts and Humanities include all electives in Art, English, World Language, Family and Consumer Sciences, Technology Education, Music, and Social Studies.

MATHEMATICS: 3 credits

SCIENCE: 3 credits HEALTH: .5 credits

PHYSICAL EDUCATION: 1.5 credits REQUIRED ELECTIVES: 6 credits

Exceptions to these requirements may be granted by the superintendent with the provisions of the Curriculum Regulations of the Pennsylvania State Board of Education. A minimum of five credits is required to enter grade 10, eleven credits to enter grade 11, and seventeen credits to enter grade 12.

STATE AND FEDERAL ACCOUNTABILITY REQUIREMENTS

Keystone Exams

The Keystone Exams are end-of-course assessments designed to assess proficiency in various subjects. Students are required to take the Keystone Exams in Algebra, Biology and Literature as part of the Federal Every Student Succeeds Act. During the 2019-2020 school year the following Keystone Exams will be given: Algebra 1, Literature and Biology. Students enrolled in Algebra 1, Biology and English 10 will take the Keystone exam in May.

In October 2018, Pennsylvania passed Act 1095 to reduce the reliance on single tests as the graduation requirement. Under the new law, students may demonstrate readiness for college and career through various options. More details regarding these options are forthcoming from the Pennsylvania Department of Education. The new law takes effect for the graduating class of 2022. The state has continued the moratorium on the Keystone Exams as a graduation requirement for the graduating classes of 2019, 2020 and 2021. However, students must still take the Keystone Exams.

Career Readiness

As part of the Every Student Succeeds Act, all Pennsylvania students are required to show evidence of completion of career exploration and preparation activities through elementary, middle and high schools. The district collects evidence of student learning in grades 3 through 11. By the end of their junior year, all 11th grade students are required to have 20 pieces of evidence collected from their academic experiences in grades 3-11.

Classroom Reading Materials

Council Rock School District strongly encourages parents to survey the outstanding collection of challenging literature contained within our program. Much of the content presents important and complex ideas that encourage critical thinking. Any connection discussed in class is made that much stronger by the conversation and connections that are made at home. We invite you to discuss any of the elements of our courses with your child's teacher.

Consumable Materials Guidelines

The following guidelines apply to the use and purchase of consumable curriculum materials that are integral to the curriculum:

The district will provide consumable curriculum materials for student use. No charge will be imposed for the use of these materials unless the materials are misused as established by the textbook use procedure or if the student elects to write in the consumable without purchasing it. .

Grading and Marking System

There are four marking periods for a yearlong course. Semester courses will have two marking periods. Each course is given a final grade determined by the district grading procedure. The value of a final exam is 25 percent of the fourth marking period grade for a yearlong course, or 25 percent of the second marking period grade in a semester course. Only final grades are reflected on the student's transcript.

The grading system for all courses is:

A = Excellent D = Below Average

 $\mathbf{B} = \text{Good}$ $\mathbf{F} = \text{Failing}$

 ${f C}={
m Average}$ ${f W}={
m Withdrawn}$ with a grade of C or better ${f WD}={
m Withdrawn}$ with a grade of "D" at time of departure from class

WF = Withdrawn with a grade of "F" at time of departure from class

Rank-in-Class Guidelines and Grade Point Average

Students have a **weighted** grade point average and class rank expressed in deciles. The details of both of these systems are described below.

Grade Point Average

This system will calculate a weighted GPA for students using the enclosed scale. The procedure for the computation of the weighted grade point average is as follows:

1. All letter grades are converted to a numerical weight as defined below

	A	В	С	D	F
AP	4.8	4.3	3.3	1.8	0
Honors	4.5	4.0	3.0	1.5	0
Accelerated	4.2	3.4	2.4	1.2	0
All Other Courses	4.0	3.0	2.0	1.0	0

- 2. Grade points for each course are determined by multiplying two factors: the numerical weight of the final grade as reflected in the chart above and the credit value.
- 3. GPA is determined by dividing the total of the course grade points by the total of attempted credits.
- 4. At the end of each school year, GPA is computed and is cumulative beginning with grade 9.

Rank-in-Class

A student's rank-in-class will be reflected through a percentile system. In addition, Council Rock does not provide an individual student ranking. A complete procedure statement concerning rank-in class is on file in the Counseling Center, where further information can be obtained. A student can contact their counselor for their decile information.

GUIDELINES FOR PROGRAM PLANNING

It is desirable that all students give very serious consideration to departmental guidelines which will be discussed in classes. These are designed to assist the student in selecting a realistic program of studies. These guidelines may be waived in special cases by a counselor after a review of student data and conference(s) with the subject matter teacher. Course changes after the initial choices in January/February become increasingly difficult to make. Therefore, the attention to planning a program at this early time is extremely important. Students will be required to select substitute choices for elective courses and alternate day courses.

The most valid guidelines for selection of elective courses are the individual student's aptitudes as reflected by his or her degree of success in previous courses, and level of interest and motivation. The stronger the student's high school record, the greater the opportunity for advancement in the future. Therefore, the student should take the most demanding program of studies that can be handled successfully. A student who elects courses based on their lack of intellectual demand is obviously shortchanging himself/herself. Likewise, choosing advanced levels of courses for which the student has shown little aptitude at this particular state of his/her development is not advisable.

The teacher in many cases will recommend a specific course based on performance, test scores and other objective data. Teacher recommendations have proven to be invaluable and highly reliable. If the parent overrides the teacher recommendation, a form is completed, signed by the parent, and placed in the student file.

Parents and students should be familiar with the following basic guidelines in scheduling:

- 1. To elect a sequential course a student should have achieved average or above average grades in the preceding related courses.
- 2. Every student must complete a full schedule of six periods each semester. Exceptions may only be granted at the discretion of the principal.

- 3. Every student should regularly review his/her school record for the past few years. The record indicates areas of strength and areas of weakness. He/she should discuss them with parents and counselors, and consider them when planning his/her school program.
- 4. No override may be reversed until after the third week of school.
- 5. If a student withdraws from a class after college applications have been sent, a letter will be sent to the college notifying it of the change.

Course Override Process

The purpose of the following information is to communicate the process that will be followed when a parent/student requests to schedule a course different from the course recommended by the student's current teacher. This begins through the course selection process when a parent indicates an override on the Course Selection form. Regardless of how a student is enrolled in a course, whether it is through a teacher recommendation or parent override, the success of each student is the goal of all stakeholders.

To ensure effective communication among student, parent, teacher, and counselor, a Parent/Student Override form will be completed when a course is selected as an override to the recommended course. This process will be initiated by the counselor and will provide everyone with the opportunity to review their recommendations or selections before a course decision is finalized.

Schedule Change Procedure

Students must make firm choices in electing courses during program planning. Serious attention should be given to the "Guidelines" described in this booklet. The parent/guardian should approve course selections by signing the Student Course Election (SCE) sheet. All changes requested after this must be in writing (from parent) and processed through the counselor. Staffing and master schedule implications require minimizing course changes.

Students must make firm choices in electing courses during program planning. Because of class size and the complexity of the master schedule, few schedule changes can be made.

Opening week-Schedules are changed to correct computer errors only.

<u>2nd and 3rd weeks</u>-Recommendations of teacher/counselor (<u>when space permits</u>) which are professionally judged to be of clear educational benefit to the student (i.e., transfer changes, changes in intended college majors, changes for misplaced students, etc.). No parent/guardian override to a teacher's scheduling recommendation may be reversed in the first three weeks of school.

4th week-W, WD and WF designations are required on any change that has teacher/counselor approval: Moves within the same discipline will generally involve dialogue from sending to receiving teacher.

5th week-WD, WF designations are required on all changes. (Requests to leave a course with a "C" or better grade will be denied unless extenuating circumstances exist. Administrative approval will be required.) Schedule changes to courses that are entirely "new" to the student will not occur after the third full week of school.

SPECIAL CURRICULUM FEATURES

Alternate Day Courses

Alternate Day courses are offered for .5 credits, are included in the calculation of GPA and class rank, and follow the same planned course as the regular semester elective if applicable.

ART

Accelerated Drawing & Painting 1 and 2

Essentials of Art

Accelerated Essentials of Art

Design 1 and 2

Accelerated Design 1 and 2

Sculpture 1 and 2

Accelerated Sculpture 1 and 2

Ceramics 1 and 2

Accelerated Ceramics 1 and 2

Metals 1 and 2

Accelerated Metals 1 and 2

BUSINESS COMPUTERS & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Computer Applications for College & Career

Accelerated Computer Applications for College & Career

Honors Finance

Business Management

Honors Business Management

Accelerated Business Law

Personal Finance & Investing

Accelerated Personal Finance & Investing

Honors Marketing

Sports and Entertainment Marketing

Entrepreneurship

ENGLISH

Acting 1 and 2

Directing 1 and 2

Critical Viewing

Public Speaking

Creative Writing

Expository Writing

Accelerated Composition

Ancient Mythology

Multicultural Literature

World Mythology, Legends, and Fables

Filmmaking

Accelerated Filmmaking 2

Communications/Media

FAMILY & CONSUMER SCIENCES

The World of Fashion

Interior Design

Life on Your Own

Child Development: Parenting

Personal Nutrition

Introduction to Food Prep

HEALTH

Accelerated Emergency Management/Driver Ed Theory

Health and Wellness10

Accelerated Senior Seminar: Life 101

MATHEMATICS

Accelerated Computer Science 1 & 2

MUSIC

Chorale

Accelerated Chorale

Accelerated Symphonic Choir

Marching/Concert Band

Accelerated Marching Symphonic Band

Concert Band

Accelerated Concert Band

String Orchestra

Accelerated String Orchestra

Accelerated Symphony Orchestra

Music Technology

Musical Theater

Introduction to Guitar

Intermediate Guitar Improvisation

PHYSICAL EDUCATION

Physical Education 9, 11, 12

Physical Education 10

Accelerated Physical Education: Team Games & Sports Accelerated Physical Education: Individual Activities

PUBLICATION DESIGN

Accelerated Publication Design 1 & 2

SOCIAL SCIENCE

Current Issues

Gender Studies

TECHNOLOGY EDUCATION

Drafting & Design Engineering 1

Accelerated Drafting and Design Engineering 2

Architectural Design and Engineering

Graphic Arts 1

Accelerated Graphic Arts 2

Digital Photography & Illustration

Know Your Car

Online Media 1

Online Media 2

Photography 1

Accelerated Photography 2

Electronics 1

Woodworking Technology 1

Accelerated Woodworking Technology 2

Engineering & Robotics

Energy, Power & Transportation 1

Accelerated Energy, Power & Transportation 2

STEM Pathways

We recognize that STEM-related careers have become increasingly important in Pennsylvania, the United States and across the globe. Council Rock has adopted the Carnegie Science Center's definition of STEM, which focuses on project-based group learning solving real-world problems by integrating science, technology, engineering and mathematics using teamwork, communication, creativity, innovation, problem-solving and critical thinking. Our core courses in Mathematics and Science incorporate STEM principles to build a foundation for STEM-related fields. Additionally, the following elective courses are identified specifically as STEM courses.

Business, Computers and Information Technology	Mathematics	
Computer Applications for College and Careers	Accelerated Statistics	
Accelerated Computer Applications for College and	AP Statistics	
Careers	Accelerated Calculus	
	Advanced Placement Calculus AB	
	Advanced Placement Calculus BC	
	Accelerated Computer Science 1	
	Accelerated Computer Science 2	
	Advanced Placement Computer Science	
	Advanced Placement Computer Science Principles	
Science	Technology Education	
Accelerated Forensics 1	Graphic Arts 1	
Accelerated Forensics 2	Accelerated Graphic Arts 2	
Accelerated Microbiology	Online Media 1	
Astronomy	Accelerated Online Media 2	
Meteorology	Digital Photography & Illustration	
Physics	Photography 1	
Accelerated Physics	Accelerated Photography 2	
Honors Physics	Drafting & Design Engineering 1	
Honors Experimental Research in STEM	Accelerated Drafting & Design Engineering 2	
AP Biology	Architectural Design & Engineering	
AP Chemistry	Honors Architectural Design & Engineering	
AP Environmental Science	Energy, Power & Transportation 1	
AP Physics C: Mechanics	Accelerated Energy, Power & Transportation 2	
AP Physics C: Mechanics & Electricity & Magnetism	Electronics 1	
	Engineering & Robotics	
	Honors Engineering & Robotics	

ALTERNATIVE PROGRAMS

Council Rock High Schools provide alternative programs for regular and special education students who have been identified as being in need of these services.

Advanced Placement Program

Advanced Placement (AP) classes are equivalent to university level courses. They are rigorous and are taught at an accelerated pace. Students will be expected to read and write in a critical fashion, analyze data, synthesize ideas, solve problems, and evaluate issues. Students should realistically expect a substantial amount of homework. Those who elect AP courses should be academically talented, highly motivated, and have a strong inclination for the subject. The students are encouraged to take the national standardized Advanced Placement Test offered by the College Board.

AP courses are offered in English, European, World, and United States History, Psychology, Calculus, Computer Science, Statistics, Biology, Chemistry, Physics and Environmental Science, Music Theory, French, German, Spanish World Languages, Art History, and Studio Art.

Cooperative Education

The Cooperative Work Experience Program is a unique learning opportunity that extends classroom learning into business, industry, and the community. The opportunity to experience the workplace helps students explore career options and gather the information they need to make informed decisions about post-secondary goals.

The Cooperative Work Experience Program allows students to pursue employment in an area of their career interest. The counselor, student, parent or guardian, and the Career Education Coordinator will determine a combined program of academics and work release time. Credit toward graduation will be granted for successful completion of this program. Each student's progress is evaluated on an ongoing basis and includes the following: written evaluations from the employer, on-site visitations to observe the student, telephone evaluations with the employer, classroom instruction, and a career experience portfolio.

Students will be required to attend a mandatory Cooperative Work Experience class each day. Class presentations and discussions will include interview techniques, applications, resumes, job safety, work labor relations, potential job placements, budgets, taxes, etc. Students are required to have the appropriate paperwork completed for an approved job. Each student must have working papers and a training agreement signed by the parent or guardian, the employer, the student-learner, as well as the Career Education Coordinator, and counselor, in order to participate in the Cooperative Work Experience Program. Further information is available in the Career Center.

Gifted Program

This state-mandated program is presently provided for in the social sciences curriculum. A course is offered in each of the four grades. Academically talented students are selected for these courses based on screening by the Counseling Center, teacher recommendation, and by meeting other requirements established by the Pennsylvania Department of Education for entrance to programs for the gifted. These courses are designed for in depth study of curriculum topics, creative thinking, and serious discussion and sharing of ideas. Discussion and class work will be based on a wide variety of learning experiences. Writing requirements include critical essays, book reviews, and research projects. Seminar presentations and outside speakers will also be part of the class structure. Interested students should consult their counselor for further information.

Courses by grade level follow:

Grade 9 Honors American Studies 1 **Grade 10** Honors American Studies 2

Grade 11 Honors Modern World History **Grade 12** Honors Philosophy

Honors Courses

Honors courses are designed to offer a greater depth of instruction at a faster pace. Placement into honors courses is based on exceptional performance or achievement in previous courses. Note that the teacher recommendation continues to be one of the strongest and most reliable criteria for honors placement. Standardized test scores can also serve as key indicators of ability to meet success in courses maintaining high scholarship standards.

Finally, it is also important to recognize that honors courses place higher demands on a student's time. A demonstrated ability to work with a heavier than average academic workload is essential.

Virtual Course

The Council Rock School District offers certain courses in a virtual format. These courses are part of a student's traditional six credit schedule. They cannot be utilized for acceleration and/or additional credit. The virtual course listings vary each year depending on student interest. Counselors and teachers will share the potential offerings during Program Planning each year. Virtual courses have a (V) on the course offering page.

Special Education

For students eligible for special education services, the selection of appropriate academic and elective classes will be determined by the IEP team.

Library Media Center

The Library Media Center is a hub for students and teachers seeking information. There are numerous books, periodicals, and audiovisual sources of information to support the curriculum. Supplementing this more traditional collection are the almost limitless resources provided by electronic databases, the Internet, and links to a variety of library and information networks.

The library also houses a multimedia lab and resources for the creation of a variety of multimedia projects and instructional materials. Library hours are extended beyond the school day to offer maximum access. The goal of the library staff is to develop skills in defining and solving problems; competence in finding, evaluating and using information from a variety of sources; and supporting enthusiastic attitudes toward libraries and reading for a lifetime.

MIDDLE BUCKS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

Our campus at Middle Bucks Institute of Technology offers a complete array of career, technical, and preprofessional courses to enhance the academic program of all students. The Middle Bucks Campus is located on Old York Road in Jamison, Warwick Township. The school is operated jointly by four participating school districts: Centennial, Central Bucks, Council Rock, and New Hope-Solebury. The school provides both a morning and afternoon program with students spending the other half of the day at their sending high school where they continue to be an integral part, studying their required subjects and participating in co-curricular and interscholastic activities. Students entering 10th, 11th or 12th grades are eligible to apply for admission. Transportation to Middle Bucks is provided by the school district.

Variety of Career Development Experiences

Depending on individual career plans and goals, students may enroll for one, two, or three year experiences. Students whose career plans include college will find any of the career programs to be meaningful and appropriate enhancements to a college prep curriculum. Furthermore, the programs available at Middle Bucks provide opportunities for students to earn college advanced credits to many well-known colleges and universities. Partnership agreements are in place for advanced credit in associate and/or baccalaureate programs at colleges

including, but not limited to: Bucks County Community College, Delaware Valley University, Gwynedd Mercy University, Johnson & Wales University, and Pennsylvania College of Technology, a Penn State affiliate.

Middle Bucks also offers nationally recognized industry certifications in each program available to students who wish to begin employment immediately after school or while continuing their education. All programs provide internship, clinical, or other work-based experiences in business and industry allowing students to gain additional on the job training.

Admission

Students must complete a Middle Bucks application to be considered for admission. Selection is based on completion of selected prerequisites, aptitude and achievement scores, interest inventories, attendance records, behavior patterns, and personal essay. Selected programs require prerequisites. Applications may be obtained from your school counselor or by calling Middle Bucks Institute of Technology at 215-343-2480.

The Educational Program

The educational program at Middle Bucks Institute of Technology is organized into ten career clusters and twenty-three career pathways (i.e., major courses of study). Typically, students enroll in one career pathway as their major field of study, then complete a core set of courses common to the career cluster and a highly rigorous technical sequence of courses related to their career pathway. Students may complete additional specialized courses as they advance beyond standard secondary curriculum. The career cluster model is recognized as one of the most effective educational initiatives for preparing young people of the new economy.

Assessment

Assessment services are intended to help students make career decisions by identifying their technical aptitudes and interests, and are offered to students in our four sending districts as well as to adults. A testing center has been established at MBIT with staff trained in test administration and interpretation. For more information, or to have your child tested, please contact either your child's school counselor or MBIT's school counselor.

Architecture & Construction Career Cluster

Pathways:

Building Trades Occupations
Construction Carpentry
Computerized Drafting & Engineering Graphics
Electrical & Network Cabling
HVAC & Plumbing Technology
Practical Environmental Landscaping

Arts, A/V Technology & Communications Career Cluster

Pathways:

Commercial Art & Design Multimedia Technology

Health Science Career Cluster

Pathways:

Dental Occupations Medical & Health Professions Sports Therapy & Exercise Management

Hospitality Career Cluster

Pathway:

Culinary Arts & Sciences

Human Services Career Cluster

Pathways:

Cosmetology

Early Childhood Care & Education

Information Technology Career Cluster

Pathways:

Administrative Sciences & Business Technology

Networking & Operating Systems Security

Web Design and Interactive Media

Law, Public Safety & Security Career Cluster

Pathway:

Public Safety

Manufacturing Career Cluster

Pathway:

Welding Technology

Science, Technology, Engineering, & Mathematics Career Cluster

Pathway:

Engineering Related Technology

Transportation, Distribution, & Logistics Career Cluster

Pathways:

Automotive Technology Collision Repair Technology

ADDITIONAL OPPORTUNITIES FOR STUDENTS

Alternative Programs for High School Credit

There are occasions when a student may wish to obtain academic credit to fulfill graduation requirements or for personal enrichment. All courses taken for credit must be submitted to the student's counselor for approval prior to enrollment in order to ensure the granting of Council Rock High School credit or the acceptance of credit by the Council Rock School District. It is important to note that courses taken outside of Council Rock are not counted in the calculation of grade point average. Students may not accelerate their sequence of study without approval from the district coordinator. Only courses needed to fulfill graduation requirements will be included on transcript. Approval must be submitted by May 1st.

- 1. Summer School
- 2. Private Tutoring
- 3. Standard Evening High School
- 4. Bucks County Community College
- 5. Private Accredited Evening and Day Schools

BCCC High School Enrichment Program

Occasionally a student may choose to schedule a course(s) at Bucks County Community College, which requires special scheduling and administrative approval. Interested students should see their counselor for information regarding eligibility for enrollment, as the college has specific requirements for participation in this program.

College Accelerated Program

Council Rock students who gain admission to college at the end of their junior year can receive their Council Rock diploma with their original class by substituting appropriate college credits for remaining

graduation credits. Students interested in this program should obtain further information from their counselor. Articulation between Council Rock graduation requirements and college courses is essential.

Dual Enrollment

On-Site at Council Rock High Schools. Council Rock School District has entered into Dual Enrollment Agreement with Gwynedd Mercy University (GMercyU). Select Council Rock faculty members have been authorized by the university to teach Gwynedd Mercy courses at Council Rock during regular school hours. The cost is \$400 per course which is forwarded to Gwynedd Mercy University. A student seeking this opportunity should understand that the grade awarded for the Council Rock course will be reported on the high school report card and the same grade will be reported to the university and appear on an official college transcript to be provided to the student by Gwynedd Mercy University.

The courses offered with a dual enrollment option are:

- Honors Accounting: GMercyU, Principles of Accounting ACC 105
- Honors Management: GMercyU, Principles of Management BUS 301
- Honors Marketing: GMercyU, Principles of Marketing BUS 207
- Accelerated Computers for College and Careers: GMercyU, Introduction to Desktop Computing CIS 101

Off-Site on College Campuses. Periodically, Council Rock is awarded a Dual Enrollment grant from the Pennsylvania Department of Education. This grant allows junior and senior students to attain transferable college credit from cooperating institutions of higher education while concurrently earning credit toward high school graduation. Grant monies permit our students to attend these classes at the college with reduced rate.

Early Graduation

The Early Graduation Program at Council Rock High School provides students the opportunity to complete the requirements for graduation from Council Rock by January of their senior year or June of their junior year. The program is open to any student who desires to accelerate high school completion to enroll at institutions of higher learning, vocational or trade schools, or to enter the world of work. Students may find this option severely limited due to the graduation requirements.

To qualify for early graduation, students must successfully complete all graduation requirements (as stated elsewhere in this handbook) by their expected date of graduation. Students should contact their counselor for applications and further information. All arrangements should be made during the normal program planning calendar. The deadline for considering this option is the third week of school.

NCAA Athletic Eligibility (+)

Council Rock School District makes course recommendations based on the most appropriate academic placement. All students whose future plans include enrolling in college and participating in Division I or Division II athletics must be certified by the NCAA Initial-Eligibility Clearinghouse. It is the responsibility of the student to obtain the most recent evaluation of Council Rock's approved course list from his/her counselor or the NCAA web site at www.eligibilitycenter.org. Course modifications and new courses are submitted to the NCAA each year. Therefore, it is very important to check yearly for any changes in course approvals and eligibility requirements.

Applications, available on the website, should be submitted to the eligibility center by the fall of the senior year. Students should submit a transcript request form to have an official transcript sent during the Fall of Senior year. If this process is not followed, the student will not be permitted to participate in college athletics during the freshman year.

To be eligible for Division I or Division II students will need to present 16 core courses in the following breakdowns:

DIVISION I 16 Core Courses

- 4 years of English.
- 3 years of mathematics (Algebra I or higher)
- 2 years of natural/physical science
 - (1 year of lab if offered by high school)
- 1 year of additional English, mathematics or natural/physical science
- 2 years of social science
- 4 years of additional courses (from any area above, foreign language or comparative religion/philosophy)

DIVISION II 16 Core Courses

- 3 years of English.
- 2 years of mathematics (Algebra I or higher)
- 2 years of natural/physical science (1 year of lab if offered by high school)
- 3 years of additional English, mathematics or natural/physical science
- 2 years of social science
- 4 years of additional courses (from any area above, foreign language or comparative religion/philosophy)

NOTE: (+) after a course title indicates an approved core course for NCAA initial eligibility. <u>To students applying for NCAA Division I and II sports:</u>

Any credits taken outside of Council Rock School District for either remediation or original credit may not be approved by the NCAA. It is the responsibility of the student to contact the educational institution to verify whether the course falls under the approved course list for NCAA. It is also the student's responsibility to obtain a transcript from the educational institution indicating the course, grade and credit to include in his/her application for NCAA eligibility.

Service Learning

Council Rock School District has enjoyed a successful history of involvement with our community. Significant community service projects have taken place through student service organizations, student government, school projects, and individual student initiatives.

In addition, students are eligible to voluntarily participate in a formalized service learning program. Specifically, students who complete a minimum of 60 hours of pre-approved and verified community service between the end of eighth grade and the end of twelfth grade will receive formal recognition through documentation which will appear on official school records.

It is our intent to encourage students to participate in an activity to which Council Rock is strongly committed. For more information, contact the Career Education Coordinator at each High School.

RECOMMENDED COURSE SELECTION FOR HIGHER EDUCATION

Higher education takes on many forms, ranging from on-the-job training and vocational-technical education to college and university preparation. Most high school students who wish to continue their education after high school can find an institution where they can be accepted for admission. Colleges vary widely in their admission requirements. When studying admission requirements for specific colleges, one should note whether certain courses are "required" or "recommended."

Recommended means that certain courses are preferred but not necessary for admission. Some colleges have no specific high school courses which are required for admission. Generally, the following is a strong guideline for college preparatory study. Keep in mind that some colleges do not require all these subjects and that some colleges require more.

GRADES 9-12

English - 4 years minimum

Social Studies - 3 years minimum

Mathematics - 3 years minimum

Science - 3 years (lab science) minimum

World Language - 2 years minimum

Colleges consider a final grade of "C" or better as a minimum standard.

COURSE OFFERINGS

Note: The title of the course will determine its effect on the calculation of a weighted GPA, with AP, Honors and Accelerated level courses only, carrying additional weight. Refer to page 7 for explanation.

*COURSES WILL BE OFFERED WITH AN ACCELERATED OPTION

^COURSES WILL BE OFFERED WITH A DUAL ENROLLMENT OPTION

ART

Essentials of Art* (AD)

Accelerated Drawing & Painting 1 (YR) (AD)

Accelerated Drawing & Painting 2 (AD)

Honors Drawing & Painting 2 (YR)

AP Drawing (YR)

AP 2D Art & Design (YR)

AP 3D Art & Design (YR)

Design 1* (AD)

Design 2* (AD)

Sculpture 1* (AD)

Sculpture 2* (AD)

Ceramics 1* (AD)

Ceramics 2* (AD)

Metals 1* (AD)

Metals 2* (AD)

AP Art History (YR)

BUSINESS, COMPUTERS & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Computer Applications for College and Career * (AD)

Accelerated Computer Applications for College and Careers (AD) ^

Personal Finance & Investing * (AD)

Accelerated Accounting (YR)

Honors Finance (AD) (S)

Honors Accounting (YR) ^

Entrepreneurship (AD) (S)

Business Management (AD) (S)

Sports and Entertainment Marketing (AD) (S)

Honors Marketing (AD) (S)^

Accelerated Business Law (AD) (S)

Honors Business Management (AD) (S)^

ENGLISH

Intensive Reading (YR)

English 9: Reading and Writing Workshop (YR)

English 9 (YR)

Honors English 9 (YR)

English 10: Reading and Writing Workshop (YR)

English 10 (YR)

Accelerated English 10 (YR)

Honors English 10 (YR)

English 11: Reading and Writing Workshop (YR)

English 11 (YR)

Accelerated English 11 (YR)

Honors English 11 (YR)

AP 11 Language & Composition (YR)

English 12: Reading and Writing Workshop (S)

English 12 (S) (V)

Accelerated English 12 (YR) (V)

Honors English 12 (YR)

AP 12 Literature & Composition (YR)

Ancient Mythology (S) (AD) (V)

Multicultural Literature (S) (AD)

World Mythology, Legends, and Fables (S) (AD)

Acting 1 (AD)

Acting 2 (AD)

Directing 1 (AD)

Directing 2 (AD)

Critical Viewing (S) (AD)

Filmmaking (S) (AD)

Accelerated Filmmaking 2 (AD)

Communications/Media (S) (AD)

TV/Video Production (S)

Independent TV/Video Production (YR)

Public Speaking (S) (AD)

Creative Writing (S) (AD)

Expository Writing (S) (AD)

Accelerated Composition (S) (AD)

FAMILY & CONSUMER SCIENCES

The World of Fashion (AD)

Interior Design (AD)

Life on Your Own (AD)

Child Development: Parenting (AD)

Child Development: Nursery School * (YR)

Accelerated Nutrition and Dietetics (YR)

Personal Nutrition (AD)

Introduction to Food Prep (AD)

Culinary Arts/Regional Cuisine (YR)

HEALTH

Health and Wellness 10 (AD)

Accelerated Emergency Management & Driver Ed Theory (AD)

Accelerated Senior Seminar: Life 101 (AD)

MATHEMATICS

Concepts in Mathematics (YR)

Algebra 1 (YR)

Accelerated Algebra 1 (YR)

Algebra 2 (YR)

Accelerated Algebra 2 (YR)

Honors Algebra 2 (YR) (V)

Geometry (YR)

Accelerated Geometry (YR)

Honors Geometry (YR)

Trigonometry (S)

Statistics (S)

Accelerated Statistics (YR)

AP Statistics (YR)

Analysis (YR)

Accelerated Analysis (YR)

Honors Analysis (YR)

Accelerated Calculus (YR)

AP Calculus AB (YR)

AP Calculus BC (YR)

Accelerated Computer Science 1 & 2 (S) (AD)

AP Computer Science A (YR)

AP Computer Science Principles (YR)

MUSIC

Performance Groups:

Marching Concert Band * (AD)

Accelerated Marching Symphonic Band (AD)

Concert Band * (AD)

Chorale * (AD)

Accelerated Symphonic Choir (AD)

String Orchestra * (AD)

Accelerated Symphony Orchestra (AD)

Academic Courses:

Music Theory 1 (YR)

AP Music Theory (YR)

Honors Music Arranging (YR)

Introduction to Guitar (AD)

Intermediate Guitar (AD)

Improvisation (AD)

Music Technology (AD)

Musical Theater (AD)

PHYSICAL EDUCATION

Physical Education 9, 11, 12 (AD)

Accelerated Physical Education: Team Games & Sports (AD) Accelerated Physical Education: Individual Activities (AD)

Physical Education 10 (AD)

PUBLICATION DESIGN

Accelerated Publication Design 1 (AD)

Accelerated Publication Design 2 (AD)

SCIENCE

Physical Science (YR)

Accelerated Physical Science (YR)

Biology (YR)

Accelerated Biology (YR)

Honors Biology (YR)

AP Biology (YR)

Chemistry (YR)

Accelerated Chemistry (YR)

Honors Chemistry (YR)

AP Chemistry (YR)

Physics (YR)

Accelerated Physics (YR)

Honors Physics (YR)

AP Physics C: Mechanics (YR)

AP Physics C: Mechanics & Electricity & Magnetism (YR)

Environmental Science (YR)

AP Environmental Science (YR)

Accelerated Behavioral Science - Experimental Psychology (YR)

Accelerated Microbiology (YR)

Honors Human Anatomy & Physiology (YR)

Astronomy (S)

Meteorology (S)

Animal Science (S)

Plant Science (S)

Accelerated Forensic Science I (S)

Accelerated Forensic Science II (S)

Honors Experimental Research in STEM (YR)

SOCIAL SCIENCE

Literacy Studies in American History 9 (YR)

American Civilization 9 (YR)

Honors American Civilization 9 (YR)

Literacy Studies in American History 10 (YR)

American Civilization 10 (YR)

Honors American Civilization 10 (YR)

Literacy Studies in World History (YR)

World History (YR)

Honors World History (YR)

Introduction to Economics (S)

Current Issues (S) (AD)

Honors Economic Theory (S)

Honors United States Government & Politics (S)

Introduction to Psychology (S)

Gender Studies (S) (AD)

Accelerated Psychology (YR) (V)

Introduction to Sociology (S)

AP European History (YR)

AP Psychology (YR)

AP U.S. History (YR)

AP World History (YR)

Gifted Programs

Honors American Studies 1 (YR)

Honors American Studies 2 (YR)

Honors Modern World History (YR)

Honors Philosophy (YR)

TECHNOLOGY EDUCATION

Drafting & Design Engineering 1 (AD) (S) (YR)

Accelerated Drafting & Design Engineering 2 (AD) (YR)

Architectural Design & Engineering (AD) (S)

Honors Architectural Design & Engineering (YR)

Know Your Car (AD) (S)

Energy, Power & Transportation 1 (AD) (YR)

Accelerated Energy, Power & Transportation 2 (AD) YR)

Electronics 1 (AD) (S) (YR)

Woodworking Technology 1 (AD) (S) (YR)

Accelerated Woodworking Technology 2 (AD) (YR)

Engineering & Robotics (AD) (S)

Honors Engineering & Robotics (YR)

Digital Photography & Illustration Design (AD)

Graphic Arts 1 (AD) (S) (YR)

Accelerated Graphic Arts 2 (AD) (YR)

Photography 1 (AD) (S) (YR)

Accelerated Photography 2 (AD) (YR)

Online Media 1 (AD)

Online Media 2 (AD)

Independent Study Courses in Technology Education (AD) (YR)

WORLD LANGUAGE

French, German, Spanish, Level I (YR)

Latin, Level I (YR)

French, German, Spanish, Level II (YR)

Honors French, German Spanish, Level II (YR)

Honors Latin, Level II (YR)

French, German, Spanish, Level III (YR)

Honors French, German, Spanish, Level III (YR)

Honors Latin, Level III (YR)

French, Spanish, German, Level IV (YR)

Honors French, German, Spanish, Level IV (YR)

Honors Latin, Level IV (YR)

AP French, German, Spanish Language (YR)

ART



All of the courses in the Art Department satisfy the Arts and Humanities or Free Elective requirements for graduation.

The Visual Arts program is offered to students in grades 9 through 12. The program consists of elective offerings designed to introduce students to a variety of techniques, mediums, and concepts. Whether students are interested in a general exploration of the arts or a more concentrated study required for college acceptance and a career in the arts, we offer courses designed for all levels. These courses include Essentials of Art, Design, Ceramics, Sculpture, Metals, Drawing and Painting, Honors Drawing and Painting, AP Studio, and AP Art History. The advanced level courses are strongly recommended for portfolio preparation necessary for college admissions in fine arts, architecture, fashion design, and media design.

There are no prerequisites for Essentials of Art, Ceramics I, Sculpture I, Metals I and AP Art History.

For students eligible for special education services, the selection of appropriate academic and elective classes will be determined by the IEP team.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT COURSES ADHERE TO COLLEGE BOARD REQUIREMENTS.

AP ART HISTORY (YR)

GRADES 10-12

This course is designed to introduce students to the contextual understanding of works of art. The class begins with the ancient world and continues for the year with lectures and textbook assignments that cover the history of art in the twentieth century. No prior experience in art is necessary. Students who have done well in studies such as history, literature, and advanced art are encouraged to enroll. This course requires a high degree of commitment to academic work in order to qualify students for credit and/or Advanced Placement in American colleges. Two goals of the course are to encourage the students to pursue further study in college as well as become versed in the visual language of art. Students enrolled in this course have an opportunity to gain college credit and are encouraged to take the AP Exam in the spring.

AP DRAWING (YR) GRADES 11-12

Advanced Placement Drawing is a rigorous college-level course, which requires the production of an extensive portfolio. Students who enroll in AP Drawing should do so with the understanding that they plan to participate in the AP Studio evaluation. Ongoing critical analysis, through individual and group critiques, enables both the students and the teacher to access the strengths and weaknesses in the work. Advanced Placement Drawing is designed for highly motivated students. The course emphasizes making art as an ongoing process that involves the student in informed and critical decision-making. Prerequisites: successful completion of Essentials of Art, full year Drawing and Painting 1 and teacher recommendation.

AP 2D ART & DESIGN (YR)

GRADES 11-12

Advanced Placement 2D Art & Design is a rigorous college-level course, which requires the production of an extensive portfolio. Students who enroll in AP-2D Art & Design should do so with the understanding that they plan to participate in the AP Studio evaluation. Ongoing critical analysis, through individual and group critiques, enables both the students and the teacher to access the strengths and weaknesses in the work. Advanced Placement 2D Art & Design is designed for highly motivated students. The course emphasizes making art as an

ongoing process that involves the student in informed and critical decision-making. Prerequisites: successful completion of Essentials of Art, Design 1 & 2 and teacher recommendation.

AP-3D ART & DESIGN (YR)

GRADES 11-12

Advanced Placement 3D Art & Design is a rigorous college-level course, which requires the production of an extensive portfolio. Students who enroll in AP 3D Art & Design should do so with the understanding that they plan to participate in the AP Studio evaluation. Ongoing critical analysis, through individual and group critiques, enables both the students and the teacher to access the strengths and weaknesses in the work. Advanced Placement 3D Art & Design is designed for highly motivated students. The course emphasizes making art as an ongoing process that involves the student in informed and critical decision-making. Prerequisites: successful completion of Essentials of Art, 2 classes of sculpture, ceramics or metals (in any combination) and teacher recommendation.

ESSENTIALS OF ART (AD)

GRADES 9-12

Essentials of Art is the foundation course for all students entering the Art Department. The course acquaints students with the elements of design which are fundamental for visual art experiences. Essentials of Art provides students with necessary communication, organization, assessment, presentation and production skills. Students who are successful in Essentials of Art will gain valuable information for relating art to everyday living in both a practical and aesthetic sense.

Students in Essentials of Art will experience, experiment, and learn to work with problems relating to twodimensional and three-dimensional design elements. Working from observation will be an important emphasis. Students will use materials and processes which are important in the intermediate level art courses at Council Rock High School. Students will also reflect on their experiences through unit journals.

Successful completion of Essentials of Art is a prerequisite for Accelerated Drawing/Painting1 and Design 1.

ACCELERATED ESSENTIALS OF ART (AD)

GRADES 9-12

Accelerated Essentials of Art is similar to Essentials of Art except that this course is based on a more rigorous curriculum. In accelerated classes, students are expected to have expanded personal solutions to art-based problems and create using the highest levels of production. Students will be asked to complete additional assignments as required by the teacher.

ACCELERATED DRAWING AND PAINTING 1 (AD) (YR)

GRADES 10-12

Accelerated Drawing and Painting 1 is a full year intermediate course. This course may be taken as an alternate day class for an overview; or taken for a full year for an in-depth experience. The full year in-depth approach is highly recommended. The purpose of the course is to introduce students to a concentration in drawing and design with some painting experiences. Major emphasis will be placed on drawing and painting from life and portfolio preparation.

Accelerated Drawing and Painting 1 is for students who have successfully completed Essentials of Art or Accelerated Essentials of Art. No previous experience with drawing or painting is required. Students should have a strong interest in developing their drawing and painting skills.

Students will be acquainted with several basic areas including drawing materials and techniques. A full year of Drawing and Painting I is required to enter AP Studio Art. Students requiring a portfolio for college admission are encouraged to take this class. (Architecture, Fashion, Graphic Design and Visual Arts)

ACCELERATED DRAWING AND PAINTING 2 (AD)

GRADES 10-12

Accelerated Drawing and Painting 2 is an alternate day advanced level course. The purpose of the course is to give students advanced information about the skills, tools, processes and materials in painting, color drawing,

and design. Major emphasis will be in drawing and painting from life. Students will also learn about art history, particularly as it applies to painting and art criticism.

Accelerated Drawing and Painting 2 is for students who have successfully completed Accelerated Drawing and Painting 1. Students should have a strong interest in increasing their drawing and painting skills.

Students will experience the materials and processes that are important in painting and will be acquainted with painting in opaque and transparent media. Students will learn about painting descriptively and non-objectively, and will also draw, print and design with other color media.

HONORS DRAWING AND PAINTING 2 (YR)

GRADES 11-12

Honors Drawing and Painting 2 is a full year honors level course. This course gives students advanced information about the skills, tools, processes and materials in painting, color drawing, and design. Major emphasis will be in drawing and painting from life. Art production, art history, art aesthetics, art criticism, research, and visual journals are all a part of this course. Honors Drawing and Painting 2 is for students who have successfully completed Drawing and Painting 1. <u>Prerequisites</u>: successful completion of Essentials of Art and Drawing and Painting 1.

DESIGN 1 (AD)

GRADES 10-12

Design 1 is an intermediate level course. The purpose of Design 1 is to introduce students to the skills, tools, materials and processes of design. In addition, the course features experiences in printmaking.

Design 1 is intended to enhance the design skills of the fine artist as well as those whose applications will be more practical as in communications design, industrial design, etc.

Students will use the materials and processes that are basic to design and printmaking. They will be reacquainted with the elements of design, and introduced to the principles of design. Recommended prerequisite: Essentials of Art or teacher permission.

DESIGN 2 (AD) GRADES 10-12

Design 2 is an advanced level course for students who wish to continue exploring design concepts. The course will provide students with the opportunity to synthesize ideas presented in Design 1 and apply these ideas to more complex assignments that integrate all of the design principles. Students will work in drawing, painting, printmaking media and book arts. The course will consist of class assignments and independent historical research of design movements.

ACCELERATED DESIGN 1 (AD)

GRADES 10-12

Accelerated Design 1 is similar to Design 1 except that this course is based on a more rigorous curriculum. In accelerated classes, students are expected to have expanded personal solutions to art based problems and create using the highest levels of production. Students will be asked to complete additional assignments as required by the teacher.

ACCELERATED DESIGN 2 (AD)

GRADES 10-12

Accelerated Design 2 is similar to Design 2 except that this course is based on a more rigorous curriculum. In accelerated classes, students are expected to have expanded personal solutions to art based problems and create using the highest levels of production. Students will be asked to complete additional assignments as required by the teacher.

SCULPTURE 1 (AD) GRADES 9-12

Sculpture 1 is an intermediate level course. The purpose of Sculpture 1 is to introduce students to the skills, tools, materials and processes of sculpture and three-dimensional design. The course may be taken for a single semester for an overview; or it may be taken for more than one semester for an in-depth experience. It is

highly recommended that course be taken for more than one semester. No other previous experience with sculpture or three-dimensional design is required.

Students will experience the materials and processes that are basic to sculpture processes, beginning with the additive and modeling processes. They will also be introduced to methods of work, putting sculpture on display, and ways to finish sculpture. A history of art through sculpture is also included as is evaluation of three-dimensional art.

ACCELERATED SCULPTURE 1 (AD)

GRADES 9-12

Accelerated Sculpture 1 is similar to Sculpture 1 except that this course is based on a more rigorous curriculum. In accelerated classes, students are expected to have expanded personal solutions to art based problems and create using the highest levels of production. Students will be asked to complete additional assignments as required by the teacher.

SCULPTURE 2 (AD) GRADES 10-12

Sculpture 2 is an advanced level course. The purpose of Sculpture 2 is to continue students' experiences with the tools, materials and processes of sculpture and three-dimensional design. Sculpture 2 is for students who have successfully completed Sculpture 1 or Accelerated Sculpture 1.

Students will continue to work with the materials and processes of sculpture processes, but they will focus on subtractive methods in in-the-round and relief pieces. They will also continue to be acquainted with methods of work, putting sculpture on display, and ways to finish sculpture. A history of art through sculpture is also included as is evaluation of three-dimensional art.

ACCELERATED SCULPTURE 2 (AD)

GRADES 10-12

Accelerated Sculpture 2 is similar to Sculpture 2 except that this course is based on a more rigorous curriculum. In accelerated classes, students are expected to have expanded personal solutions to art based problems and create using the highest levels of production. Students will be asked to complete additional assignments as required by the teacher.

CERAMICS 1 (AD) GRADES 9-12

Ceramics 1 is an intermediate level course. The purpose of Ceramics 1 is to introduce students to the skills, tools, materials and processes involved in working with clay. No previous experience with clay work and three-dimensional design is required. Students use the materials and processes that are basic to ceramics. To enhance their work, students will learn about hand building, using the pinch pot, coil and slab methods. They will learn about clay and glazes, and may be introduced to the potter's wheel. Students will also be introduced to the kiln and firing methods. A history of art through ceramics will also be included. A LAB FEE WILL BE CHARGED.

ACCELERATED CERAMICS 1 (AD)

GRADES 9-12

Accelerated Ceramics 1 is similar to Ceramics 1 except that this course is based on a more rigorous curriculum. In accelerated classes, students are expected to have expanded personal solutions to art based problems and create using the highest levels of production. Students will be asked to complete additional assignments as required by the teacher. A LAB FEE WILL BE CHARGED.

CERAMICS 2 (AD) GRADES 10-12

Ceramics 2 is an advanced level course. The purpose of Ceramics 2 is to expand student experiences with the skills, tools, materials and processes involved in working with clay.

Ceramics 2 is for students who have successfully completed Ceramics 1 or Accelerated Ceramics 1. Students will explore the materials and process which are basic to ceramics, but they will focus on the potter's

wheel as a means to create production pottery. They will continue to learn about clay and glazes, the kiln and firing methods. A history of art through ceramics will also be included. A LAB FEE WILL BE CHARGED.

ACCELERATED CERAMICS 2 (AD)

GRADES 10-12

Accelerated Ceramics 2 is similar to Ceramics 2 except that this course is based on a more rigorous curriculum. In accelerated classes, students are expected to have expanded personal solutions to art based problems and create using the highest levels of production. Students will be asked to complete additional assignments as required by the teacher. A LAB FEE WILL BE CHARGED.

METALS 1 (AD) GRADES 9-12

Metals 1 is an intermediate level alternate day course. The purpose of Metals 1 is to introduce students to the skills, tools, materials and processes of the art and craft of silversmithing.

No previous experience with metals or three-dimensional design is required. However, students should have an interest in developing their metal smithing skills.

Students will experience the materials and processes that are basic to metals. Students will learn about forming, cutting, joining, decorating and polishing metals. They can make jewelry pieces: rings, bracelets, pendants, necklaces, etc. Advanced students may learn about setting stones, enameling, and making metal containers.

Brass, copper, nickel, and nu-gold will generally be used; however, students who are confident of their skills may purchase sterling silver. They will also be acquainted with methods of work, putting jewelry on display, and ways to finish pieces. A history of art through metal smithing is also emphasized, as is evaluation of three-dimensional art. A LAB FEE WILL BE CHARGED.

ACCELERATED METALS 1 (AD)

GRADES 9-12

Accelerated Metals 1 is similar to Metals 1 except that this course is based on a more rigorous curriculum. In accelerated classes, students are expected to have expanded personal solutions to art based problems and create using the highest levels of production. Students will be asked to complete additional assignments as required by the teacher. A LAB FEE WILL BE CHARGED.

METALS 2 (AD) GRADES 10-12

Metals 2 is an advanced level alternate day course. The purpose of Metals 2 is to provide students with further opportunities to explore the skill, tools, materials and processes of the art and craft of metal smithing.

Metals 2 is for students who have successfully completed Metals 1 or Accelerated Metals 1. Students should have an interest in developing their metal smithing skills. Students will utilize the materials and processes of metal smithing: forming, cutting, joining, decorating and polishing metals.

They will make jewelry pieces: rings, bracelets, pendants, necklaces, etc. Advanced students will focus on learning about setting stones, enameling, and making metal containers. Brass, copper, nickel, and nu-gold will generally be used; however, students who are confident of their skills may purchase sterling silver. They will also be acquainted with methods of work, putting jewelry on display, and ways to finish pieces. A history of art through metals is also emphasized as is evaluation of three-dimensional art. A LAB FEE WILL BE CHARGED.

ACCELERATED METALS 2 (AD)

GRADES 10-12

Accelerated Metals 2 is similar to Metals 2 except that this course is based on a more rigorous curriculum. In accelerated classes, students are expected to have expanded personal solutions to art based problems and create using the highest levels of production. Students will be asked to complete additional assignments as required by the teacher. A LAB FEE WILL BE CHARGED.

ALL ART COURSES

All courses feature four major areas of art: production, history, criticism, and aesthetics. Required assignments may be made in any of these areas on a regular basis. Outside-of-class assignments are also required. Methods of instruction focus on individual planning and production, but may also include lecture, discussion, demonstration and class critique. Final examinations are required in all courses. In some courses, students may be required to present a portfolio of their work and an evaluation of their accomplishments in lieu of (or in addition to) an objective exam.

Students who will be pursuing college degrees in the visual arts, industrial or architectural design, and interior or fashion design will benefit from enrolling in Drawing and Painting I to develop the necessary portfolio.

BUSINESS, COMPUTERS & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (BCIT)



The goal of the Business, Computer & Information Technology Department (BCIT) is to prepare students for the dynamic world of business and technology. Whether students plan to enter the work force upon graduation or continue with further education, they can learn marketable skills that improve productivity while expanding career options and earning power.

THE BUSINESS ACADEMY

The BCIT Department issues academic achievement certificates to students who obtain at least two credits in an academy. Students are required to obtain at least a B average in the courses taken for certification.

Academy of
Accounting & Finance

Accounting course Finance course One Accounting & Finance elective course

- Computer Applications
- Economics
- Statistics

Academy of Management & Marketing

Management course
Marketing course
Two Management &
Marketing elective courses

- Business Law
- Entrepreneurship
- Computer Applications
- Graphic Arts
- Art

Academy of Computer Technology

Computer Applications course Programming course Computer Design course

- Online media
- Digital photography
- Graphic arts
- Publication design
- Engineering
- TV production
- Filmmaking
- Music technology

One additional Computer Technology Academy course, if necessary

MICROSOFT OFFICE SPECIALIST CERTIFICATION

The Microsoft Office Specialist program is the only comprehensive, performance-based certification program approved by Microsoft to validate desktop computer skills using Word, Excel, and PowerPoint. Successful candidates receive all the skills needed to obtain a Microsoft Office Specialist certificate that sets them apart from their peers in the competitive job market. The certificate is a valuable



credential recognized worldwide as proof that an individual has the desktop computing skills needed to work more productively and efficiently. A fee will be charged for the certification exam.

The courses offered with a Microsoft Office Specialist Certification option are:

- Computers for College and Careers
- Accelerated Computers for College and Careers

DUAL ENROLLMENT

Council Rock School District has a Dual Enrollment Agreement with Gwynedd Mercy University



(GMercyU). The Dual Enrollment Program offers juniors and seniors an opportunity to get a head start on college by completing college courses and earning college credits while still in high school. The courses are offered at a substantial discount of only \$400 per course. This program is a perfect way for juniors and seniors to explore new subjects, save on college tuition, and prepare for their futures all while never leaving their high school campus. Students who participate in the Dual Enrollment Program can enter

college with as many as 9 credits. 3 credits per course will be awarded with a maximum of 9 credits total.

The courses offered with a dual enrollment option are:

- Honors Accounting: GMercyU, Principles of Accounting ACC 105
- Honors Management: GMercyU, Principles of Management BUS 301
- Accelerated Computers for College & Careers: GMercyU, Introduction to Desktop Computing CIS 101
- Honors Marketing: GMercyU, Principles of Marketing BUS 207

COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY

COMPUTER APPLICATIONS FOR COLLEGE & CAREERS (AD)- STEM GRADES 9-12

This course will equip students with the skills and knowledge essential for top-level technology performance. Students will develop the knowledge and skills to prepare documents and presentations efficiently for college assignments and business tasks. This course prepares students for the Microsoft Office Specialist exams in Microsoft Word and PowerPoint. Some colleges and universities offer college credits or course waivers to certified Office Specialists.

ACCELERATED COMPUTER APPLICATIONS FOR COLLEGE & CAREERS (AD) - STEM GRADES 9-12

This is an advanced level computer course that will equip students with the knowledge and skills for top-level performance with productivity software. Technology concepts will be emphasized to help students correctly format documents, presentations and spreadsheets. This course prepares students for the Microsoft Office Specialist exams in Word, Excel, and PowerPoint. *Some colleges and universities offer college credits or course waivers to certified Office Specialists*.



Dual Enrollment Course: Juniors and seniors may opt to dual enroll in Gwynedd Mercy University's *Introduction to Desktop Computing CIS 101*.

The cost for dual enrollment is \$400 per course.

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCE

PERSONAL FINANCE AND INVESTING (AD)

GRADES 9-12

This course is designed for students who want to learn how to get the most out of their money today while planning for their future. Students will develop a career plan, prepare a budget, learn about banking and credit, plan for retirement, and set up an investment portfolio of stocks and mutual funds. Students will participate in many online learning activities as they develop their own personal financial plan.

ACCELERATED PERSONAL FINANCE AND INVESTING (AD)

GRADES 9-12

This course is designed for students who want to learn how to get the most out of their money today while planning for their future. Students will use more advanced analysis to develop a career plan, prepare a budget, learn about banking and credit, plan for retirement, and set up an investment portfolio of stocks and mutual funds. Students will participate in many online learning activities as they develop their own personal financial plan.

ACCELERATED ACCOUNTING (YR)

GRADES 10-12

This course is designed for students interested in exploring accounting – the language of business. Students will learn how to record, analyze, interpret, and report financial transactions to owners, managers, government agencies, and others interested in the operation of a business. Computerized accounting problems and simulations are incorporated throughout the course. Students will learn the skills necessary to obtain an entry-level office/accounting job.

HONORS ACCOUNTING (YR)

GRADES 10-12

This college-level course provides an introduction to basic principles of financial accounting, the effects of business transactions, and the effect on the financial statements. Learn how to prepare basic financial statements and to engage in decision-making essentials in our economic system through analysis of receivables and inventories. Recommended prerequisite is Honors Mathematics or a grade of at least a B in Accelerated Mathematics.



Dual Enrollment Course: Juniors and seniors may opt to dual enroll in Gwynedd Mercy University's *Principles of Accounting ACC 105*.

The cost for dual enrollment is \$400 per course.

HONORS FINANCE (AD) (S)

GRADES 10-12

This course presents an introduction to corporate finance. Students will explore how companies raise money and then use this money to increase the value of the firm. Topics for study include learning about financial markets, understanding stocks, bonds, and mutual funds, determining how well one company has performed in relation to other companies, and investigating financial principles such as interest rates, time value of money, and the risk/return trade off. Recommended prerequisite is a grade of at least a B in Accelerated Algebra 2.

MANAGEMENT & MARKETING

ENTREPRENEURSHIP (AD) (S)

GRADES 9-12

In this course students learn how to be their own boss! The course provides an overview of all the major areas of business including marketing, finance, communications, operations management, and law. Projects and computer simulations are used throughout the year to help students select a business and develop a business plan for that business.

BUSINESS MANAGEMENT (AD) (S)

GRADES 10-12

This course is designed for the student who plans to major in business in college. It provides insight into the characteristics, organization, and operation of business. It also discusses contemporary issues as well as routine factors that affect business operation, including the environment of business, business ownership, finance, proprietorships, partnerships, marketing/advertising, government regulations, and credit cards.

HONORS BUSINESS MANAGEMENT (AD) (S)

GRADES 10-12

This course is designed for the student who plans to major in business in college. Students will learn about management theories aimed at planning, organizing, leading and controlling the operations of a business both domestically and internationally. Topics include the nature of management, management theories, the environment of management, organizational structures, ethics, and leadership. Recommended prerequisite is Honors English or a grade of at least a B in Accelerated English.



Dual Enrollment Course: Juniors and seniors may opt to dual enroll in Gwynedd Mercy University's *Principles of Management BUS 301*.

The cost for dual enrollment is \$400 per course.

SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT MARKETING (AD) (S)

GRADES 10-12

This course explores the world of marketing from the perspective of the sports and entertainment field. Emphasis will be placed on all aspects of marketing including: planning, consumer behavior, product research, advertising, and communications. Industry-specific topics include college and amateur sports, professional sports, public images, and concert/entertainment venues. Students will frequently engage in individual and group activities as they research existing companies and prepare a variety of marketing materials.

HONORS MARKETING (AD) (S)

GRADES 10-12

The most dynamic growth industry in the business environment is marketing. This course is a challenging examination of the theory and practice of marketing in which students learn how important concepts like the foundations of marketing, the 4 P's of marketing (product, price, place, promotion), marketing segmentation and positioning, consumer behavior, communication skills, and marketing research are applied in marketing management. Students will be expected to participate heavily in class discussions, case problem solving and analysis, and a major team project. Recommended prerequisite is Honors English or a grade of at least a B in Accelerated English.



Dual Enrollment Course: Juniors and seniors may opt to dual enroll in Gwynedd Mercy University's *Principles of Marketing BUS 207*.

The cost for dual enrollment is \$400 per course.

ACCELERATED BUSINESS LAW (AD) (S)

GRADES 10-12

This course offers an understanding of law as it applies to everyday life. Students will learn how to avoid costly legal mistakes by developing an understanding of how the law affects activities such as buying, selling, renting, employment, and contracts. In addition to business law concepts, this course also teaches court procedures and shows students how to protect their rights.

ENGLISH



Beyond the attainment of four credits to satisfy the English requirement for graduation, additional courses taken in this department satisfy the arts and humanities or free elective requirements for graduation. For students eligible for special education services, the selection of appropriate academic and elective classes will be determined by the IEP team.

REQUIRED (LANGUAGE SKILLS) ENGLISH COURSES

Full-year courses satisfy the language skills and literature requirements for graduation. The semester courses do not satisfy the literature course required for graduation.

English Patterns Excluding Electives

Students may take these possible sequences in grades 9-12. Although patterns will generally follow a horizontal track as shown, there may be extenuating circumstances, such as teacher recommendation based on ability and/or achievement level, which will allow sequences to vary from the horizontal for a more (or less) rigorous program. The listed eleventh and twelfth grade courses are defined as language skills English courses. Students will be graded on the basis of subjective and objective tests, quizzes, and compositions. Note: (S) indicates a Semester Course.

GRADE 9	GRADE 10	GRADE 11	GRADE 12
Intensive Reading	Intensive Reading	English 11: Reading and	English 12: Reading and
	English 10: Reading and	Writing Workshop	Writing Workshop (S)
	Writing Workshop	English 11	English 12 (S)
	English 10		
English 9: Reading and	English 10: Reading and	English 11: Reading and	English 12: Reading and
Writing Workshop	Writing Workshop	Writing Workshop	Writing Workshop (S)
	English 10	English 11	English 12 (S)
English 9	English 10	English 11	English 12 (S)
	Accelerated English 10	Accelerated English 11	Accelerated English 12
Honors English 9	Accelerated English 10	Accelerated English 11	Accelerated English 12
	Honors English 10	Honors English 11	Honors English 12
		AP 11 Language and	AP 12 Literature and
		Composition	Composition

NOTE: (+) after a course title indicates an approved core course for NCAA initial eligibility.

INTENSIVE READING (YR)

Using technology, data-driven assessment tools and differentiated instruction, this class seeks to help students become better readers and writers. The purpose of this course is to develop, reinforce, and improve reading and writing skills. These skills include understanding main ideas and supporting details, making predictions and inferences, determining order of events, drawing conclusions, context, dual analysis, vocabulary development, spelling, and grammar. Students also have an opportunity to read self-selected texts that are appropriate for their reading levels and interests. Individualized and small group instruction is an integral component of this course. Students must be recommended by their classroom teacher and also the reading specialist.

ENGLISH 9: READING AND WRITING WORKSHOP (+) (YR)

GRADE 9

This full-year course is designed to assist students in continuing their growth in reading, writing, listening, speaking, and research skills. In small classes, students will use strategies to refine critical reading skills in both fiction and nonfiction. Utilizing a writing lab component, they will learn to write for multiple purposes for various audiences. A written research report is required of all students. Written pieces are assessed using the five domains of writing. In addition, formal vocabulary and grammar studies are key components of the course. Teachers also work with students to develop time management and independent study skills needed for a successful high school career. Students will begin preparing for the Keystone Literature test, which will be given in the spring of 10th grade. The high school Reading Specialist determines appropriate placement in this class.

ENGLISH 9 (+) (YR)

This full-year course is designed to assist students in continuing their growth in reading, writing, listening, speaking, and research skills. Students will use strategies to refine critical reading skills in both fiction and nonfiction. They will learn to write for multiple purposes for various audiences. A written research report is required of all students. Written pieces are assessed using the five domains of writing. In addition, formal vocabulary and grammar studies are key components of the course. Teachers also work with students to develop time management and independent study skills needed for a successful high school career. Students will begin preparing for the Keystone Literature test, which will be given in the spring of 10th grade.

HONORS ENGLISH 9 (+) (YR)

GRADE 9

This rigorous full-year course introduces students to critical reading and writing. It differs from English 9 in that it requires it requires extensive out-of-class preparation time, significant independent reading, demonstrated competency in both reading and writing, proficiency in composition conventions, and independent motivation. Literature studies include selections that lend themselves to in-depth study, using a variety of critical approaches. Students will receive direct instruction for reading informational/nonfiction texts. Writing pieces vary in length and complexity; modes of writing include some narrative and reflective, but informational and argumentation and persuasive modes are emphasized. Written pieces are assessed using the five domains of writing. The research component of the course is required of all students. Formal vocabulary and grammar studies are included in the course. Students will begin preparing for the Keystone Literature test, which will be administered in the spring of 10thgrade.

ENGLISH 10: READING AND WRITING WORKSHOP (+) (YR)

GRADE 10

This full-year course is designed to assist students in continuing their growth in reading, writing, listening, speaking, and research skills. Using small classes, this program affords students the opportunity to become more proficient in communication skills. Students will use strategies to refine critical reading and writing skills in order to analyze a variety of literary and informational/nonfiction genres and to write effectively.

Utilizing a writing lab component, there are several writing assignments per marking period, which emphasize informational and persuasive/argumentative modes. Vocabulary development and grammar usage are integrated into the course. The research process, introduced in grade nine, is continued. Students are assessed via tests, quizzes, projects, class participation, and homework. Written pieces are assessed using the five domains of writing. Students will continue preparing for the Keystone Literature test, which will be administered in the spring of 10th grade. The high school Reading Specialist determines appropriate placement in this class.

ENGLISH 10 (+) (YR)

GRADE 10

This full-year course is designed to assist students in continuing their growth in reading, writing, listening, speaking, and research skills. This program affords students the opportunity to become more proficient in

communication skills. Students will use strategies to refine critical reading and writing skills in order to analyze a variety of literary and informational/nonfiction genres and to write effectively.

There are several writing assignments per marking period, which emphasize informational and persuasive/argumentative modes. Vocabulary development and grammar usage are integrated into the course. The research process, introduced in grade nine, is continued. Students are assessed via tests, quizzes, projects, class participation, and homework. Written pieces are assessed using the five domains of writing. Students will continue preparing for the Keystone Literature test, which will be administered in the spring of 10th grade.

ACCELERATED ENGLISH 10 (+) (YR)

GRADE 10

This full-year course is designed for strongly motivated students who wish to develop their critical thinking, reading, and writing skills. It affords enthusiastic readers who have mastered most of the basic grammar, mechanics, spelling, and writing skills the opportunity to learn and become more proficient in communication skills. Students will use strategies and skills to read independently a variety of literary and nonfiction/informational genres for multiple purposes, use strategies and skills to communicate effectively in writing, actively and effectively speak and listen for an intended message, and effectively use research skills. Vocabulary development and grammar usage are integrated into the course. It differs from Honors English 10 and English 10 in two ways: first, the literature portion demands the comprehensive reader to master the most challenging of the English 10 works, while including choice selections from the Honors 10 curriculum; secondly, the pace of the class will directly coincide with its demand for independent motivation. Students will continue preparing for the Keystone Literature test, which will be administered in the spring of 10th grade.

HONORS ENGLISH 10 (+) (YR)

GRADE 10

This full-year course introduces the student to in-depth critical reading and writing preparation for college level study. Out-of-class preparation time, superior reading comprehension, a coherent writing style, and mastery of composition conventions are required for success. Literary and informational/nonfiction texts include challenging selections in a variety of genres from different cultures and historic periods. Some critical commentary about the selections will be introduced. Writing pieces vary in length and complexity; modes of writing are primarily reflective, informational, argumentative and persuasive.

The research component of the course is a documented I-Search paper. Lengthy reading assignments and intensive vocabulary study are included, and the conventions of standard written and spoken English are reviewed. Students are assessed via quizzes, tests, writing assignments, and oral participation. Written pieces are assessed using the five domains of writing rubric. Students will continue preparing for the Keystone Literature test, which will be administered in the spring of 10^{th} grade.

ENGLISH 11: READING AND WRITING WORKSHOP (+) (YR)

GRADE 11

This full-year, college preparatory course is designed to assist students in continuing their growth in critical reading, writing, listening, speaking, and research skills. Using small classes, literature discussion includes many novels, plays, and selected short stories and poetry. Students will also read nonfiction and informational texts. Much of the reading is done independently. Utilizing a writing lab component, writing—including both inclass and out-of-class papers—focuses primarily on informational and persuasive/argumentative modes. These compositions include short papers, extended five-paragraph essays, and a literary research paper with documentation. Vocabulary is assigned and tested regularly. Some SAT practice is provided. Grammar, usage, sentence structure, paragraph development, and mechanics are reviewed or taught as needed. Students are assessed through quizzes, writing assignments, and homework. Written pieces are assessed using the five domains of writing. The course includes SAT preparation. The high school Reading Specialist determines appropriate placement in this class.

ENGLISH 11 (+) (YR) GRADE 11

This full-year, college preparatory course is designed to assist students in continuing their growth in critical reading, writing, listening, speaking, and research skills. Literature includes many novels, plays, and selected short stories and poetry. Students will also read nonfiction and informational texts. Most of the reading is done independently. Writing, including both in-class and out-of-class papers, focuses primarily on informational and persuasive/argumentative modes. These compositions include short papers, extended five-paragraph essays, and a literary research paper with documentation. Vocabulary is assigned and tested regularly. Some SAT practice is provided. Grammar, usage, sentence structure, paragraph development, and mechanics are reviewed or taught as needed. Students are assessed through quizzes, writing assignments, and homework. Written pieces are assessed using the five domains of writing. The course includes SAT preparation.

ACCELERATED ENGLISH 11 (+) (YR)

GRADE 11

This full-year course is designed to be an English program that is challenging but less rigorous than Honors English 11. Proficiency in writing (especially in expository and persuasive modes) and critical reading ability are essential to success in this course. The literary focus is on American genres. Writing focuses on the informational, persuasive, and analytical modes. A major course requirement is a literary research paper with documentation. Vocabulary is assigned and assessed regularly. Grammar, usage, sentence structure, paragraph development and mechanics are reviewed or taught as needed. Assessment is based on tests and quizzes, writing assignments, and homework. Written pieces are assessed using the five domains of writing. The course includes SAT preparation. Literary analysis is a major component of the course.

HONORS ENGLISH 11 (+) (YR)

GRADE 11

This rigorous full-year course assumes prior critical reading and effective writing skills. It focuses on the development of American literature from the seventeenth to the twentieth century. This chronological approach places the literature in its historical and social contexts, thereby giving students a richer understanding of the works read. Extensive required out-of-class reading includes novels, short stories, poetry, essays, informational texts and literary nonfiction.

Writing instruction emphasizes expository, persuasive, and analytical modes, including critical papers analyzing literary selections and a literary research paper that includes textual and critical documentation. Work on style and voice in writing is emphasized.

Vocabulary is assigned regularly and grammar, usage, and mechanics are reviewed. SAT practice is incorporated. Students are assessed on the basis of tests, quizzes, oral presentations, and writing assignments and portfolios. Writing is assessed using the five domains of writing. Summer reading is required.

AP 11 LANGUAGE AND COMPOSITION (+) (YR)

GRADE 11

This full year, college level course is designed for students with <u>considerable writing skill</u>. The AP course in Language and Composition engages students in becoming skilled readers of both fiction and non-fiction, written in a variety of periods, disciplines, and rhetorical contexts, and in becoming skilled writers who compose for a variety of purposes. Both their writings and their readings will make students aware of the interactions among a writer's purposes, audience expectations, and subjects as well as the way generic conventions and the resources of language contribute to the effectiveness in writing. This course focuses on rhetorical writing skills required for the college level. Student writing will develop the use of the elements of style, tone, persuasion, imagery, theme, metaphor, satire, and a variety of other rhetorical elements. In addition, extensive out-of-class reading (including novels, short stories, poetry, and essays) is required. Additional literary selections, including critical material, are read in and out of class. Vocabulary is assigned regularly and grammar, usage, and mechanics are reviewed. SAT practice is provided. The material included in the AP test will be addressed in class. Students will be eligible to take the Advanced Placement examination for exemption from freshman college English and for credit for graduation. Summer reading is required.

ENGLISH 12: READING AND WRITING WORKSHOP (+) (S)

GRADE 12

This semester course is designed to prepare students for post-secondary education and to support competence in writing and reading skills, including basic literary analysis. Using small classes, critical thinking will be developed to ensure comprehension, application, and interpretation of key concepts. Literature selections emphasize world authors. A required Shakespearean text will be supplemented with novels, plays or a short story unit. Students will also read literary nonfiction and informational texts. Utilizing a writing lab component, students will continue to study vocabulary and to review grammar, usage, and conventions. The high school Reading Specialist determines appropriate placement in this class.

ENGLISH 12 (+) (S) GRADE 12

This semester course is designed to prepare students for post-secondary education and to support competence in writing and reading skills, including basic literary analysis. Critical thinking will be developed to ensure comprehension, application, and interpretation of key concepts. Literature selections emphasize world authors. A required Shakespearean text will be supplemented with novels, plays or a short story unit. Students will also read literary nonfiction and informational texts. Students will continue to study vocabulary and to review grammar, usage, and conventions.

ACCELERATED ENGLISH 12 (+) (YR)

GRADE 12

This full-year course requires students to have competent reading and proficient writing skills. Literature selections emphasize world authors. Required reading includes an early classic, an existential work, a Shakespearean play, a 20th century novel, short stories, and poems. Students will also read nonfiction/informational texts. In addition to writing a researched literary analysis, students will compose essays in a variety of writing modes: informational, persuasive/argumentative, descriptive, and personal. Vocabulary will be an integral component, and much of the reading, writing, and study will require self-direction and independence.

HONORS ENGLISH 12 (+) (YR)

GRADE 12

This rigorous full-year course provides a thorough and advanced study of key concepts derived from world literature. Informational, persuasive/argumentative modes will be the emphasis in writing and will require application, analysis, synthesis, and evaluation of complex course material. This course also requires the reading of a self-selected novel (from an approved reading list) that results in a researched literary analysis. Extensive reading and research of novels, plays, short stories, and poetry requires collaboration, self-direction, and independence. Students will also read nonfiction/informational texts. Intuitive, creative, and critical thinking are essential to understand, interpret, and apply abstract and complex concepts in the areas of reading, writing, vocabulary, and grammar. Summer reading is required.

AP 12 LITERATURE & COMPOSITION (+) (YR)

GRADE 12

This full-year, college-level course is designed to prepare students to take the Advanced Placement examination for exemption from freshman college English. The material included in the AP test will be addressed in class. Many challenging novels, plays, and poems will be studied in depth, utilizing a variety of critical approaches to literature. Reading outside of class is extensive. Evaluation will focus on critical essays, researched essays, creative efforts, and objective tests. Literary terms will be emphasized. Grammar and standard usage will be addressed. Writing will be assessed using Advanced Placement descriptors. Summer reading is required. Students enrolling in this course should have achieved at least a B average in either Honors English 11 or AP 11 Language and Composition as well or teacher recommendation.

LITERATURE COURSES

ANCIENT MYTHOLOGY (+) (AD) (S)

GRADES 10-12

This semester course explores various themes in the mythology of the Ancient Greek, Roman, and Norse cultures through reading, writing about, and discussing a variety of myths and legends. Discussion of various themes is based on the assigned texts. Writing assignments include original myths, short essays, and reaction/journals. Class discussions and assessment tasks are important components of this course.

MULTICULTURAL LITERATURE (+) (AD) (S)

GRADES 11-12

This course will focus on literature from diverse races and cultures as well as literature from other countries. It will also have a special focus on literature written by women across the world. The literature will not be about the experiences these races and cultures have had in America, but the poems, short stories, memoirs, essays and poems will be by authors with these diverse backgrounds. The primary focus of this course is to expose students to varied voices of which they may not otherwise know. Students in this course will hear/read about the varied experiences by people of multicultural lineage to help create a solid educational foundation.

WORLD MYTHOLOGY, LEGENDS, AND FABLES (+) (S) (AD)

GRADES 11-12

This course explores various themes in the myths, legends, and fables of various world cultures. This will be accomplished through the discussion of various themes in the assigned texts. Requirements also include reading, writing about, and discussing a variety of myths, heroic tales, legends, and fairy tales. Required writing assignments include original myths/fables/legends, short essays, and reactions/journals. Participation in class discussions and completion of assessment tasks are also requirements of the course.

OTHER ELECTIVES

These courses are designed to provide experiences in oral, written, and individual creative expression.

ACTING 1 (AD) GRADES 9-12

Acting 1 is an alternate day course that serves as an introduction to theater. The course is activity-oriented and requires students to be involved at all times. Exercises, theater games, and experimental theater are critical components of the course. Some out-of-class rehearsal time is required. Characterization is emphasized through selecting, rehearsing, and performing scenes from published plays. The course emphasizes ensemble work, mime, movement, voice, and performing before an audience. Assessment is based on the observations and evaluations of attitude, effort, preparation, and performance.

ACTING 2 (AD) GRADES 10-12

Acting 2 is an alternate day course that serves as an intermediate course in theater. The course is activity-oriented and requires students to be involved at all times. Exercises, theater games, and experimental theater are critical components of the course. Out-of-class rehearsal time is required. Characterization is emphasized through selecting, rehearsing, and performing scenes from published plays. The course emphasizes ensemble work, mime, movement, voice, and performing before an audience. Assessment is based on the observations and evaluations of attitude, effort, preparation, and performance. Students enrolling in Acting 2 must have achieved satisfactory ratings in all of the above-mentioned categories in Acting 1. Acting 2 students will be provided with further opportunities to explore and expand more sophisticated techniques in their craft.

DIRECTING 1 (AD) GRADES 11-12

This alternate day course is designed for students who have completed Acting 1 and 2. Much of the class work will include individualized projects. Each student will be required to direct a major scene or a one act play; students must be prepared to work each day after school during the rehearsal period of their play. Permission of the instructor is required for admittance to this course.

DIRECTING 2 (AD)

GRADE 12

Prerequisite: Directing 1 and teacher recommendation. Students in Directing 2 will continue to work from their individual levels of competency after completion of Directing 1. Much of the class work will include individualized projects. The final project will require each student to direct a theater piece for public performance.

CRITICAL VIEWING (S) (AD)

GRADES 11-12

This course is open to 11th and 12th grade students **only.** Students with an interest in film criticism, filmmaking, or communications will benefit from the course. Approximately 14 films are shown for analysis and discussion on thematic topics such as comedy, human drama, sports, and war. Students will learn basic film terminology and will be introduced to key concepts relating to filmmaking techniques. Students may also study notable directors including Hitchcock, Coppola, and Spielberg. Assessment will include quizzes, film logs, unit tests, compositions, and class participation. Good attendance is a must to be successful in this course. R-rated films from an approved list may be shown in this class. Parents will be informed about specific R-rated titles. Signed permission is required to register for this course.

FILMMAKING 1 (S) (AD)

GRADES 10-12

This semester or alternate day course takes the student through the filmmaking process from development through post production. It is designed for any student interested in learning how to make movies and films, whether it be a home movie, highlight video, or a major motion picture. All of the practical aspects of film are introduced in this course. Students are assessed through class participation, projects (including preproduction and development) and tests and quizzes each marking period. Upon the completion of this course, the project becomes the property of the student.

ACCELERATED FILMMAKING 2 (AD)

GRADES 11-12

This alternate day course will allow students to continue to develop their visual storytelling through advanced methods and techniques. Earning students ½ English credit, this course enables students to create and produce extended videos/films with the intention to submit their work to area and national film festivals and media showcases. Building on the components of Filmmaking 1 (available for grades 10-12), editing, camera instruction, and lighting will be the cornerstones of this course. Script (Story) development, storyboarding, oral pitch sessions, and revisions will continue to blend together English and Communications skills. This course is designed for students who plan to go into a digital/media field in college or career as well as those who utilize Filmmaking 1 skills to enhance their multimedia presentations throughout their curricular endeavors. Permission of the instructor is required for admittance to this course.

COMMUNICATIONS/MEDIA (S) (AD)

GRADES 9-12

This semester course is designed to provide in-depth understanding of broadcasting and its impact on the media. The course is intended for students who have a very serious interest in media and communication and are looking to further pursue the medium. Strong emphasis will be placed upon the history of television along with related terms, network and affiliate structure, violence and the media, the First Amendment and Freedom of Speech, and television advertising. As available, operation of technical equipment (audio and video), scripting, directing, and on-camera performances will be explored. At least one major writing assignment per marking period is required. Broadcast Communications is a required prerequisite for TV Production.

TV/VIDEO PRODUCTION (S)

GRADES 10-12

This semester course is designed for students who have a serious interest in further study of media and communication. It provides an in-depth understanding of television and its impact on other media. Heavy emphasis will be placed on writing, staging, and acting using production techniques learned in the course. Producing, directing, lighting, editing, and engineering operations highlight the programming elements of this course. Communications/Media is a required prerequisite for admittance to this course.

INDEPENDENT TV/VIDEO PRODUCTION (YR)

GRADES 11-12

This course provides individualized participation in creating television productions used by Council Rock School District. Personal experiences and encouragement of creative talents are of primary importance in this course. The role of the student as producer-director is emphasized, with students supported by faculty supervision. Students will be assessed on completion of major projects that include personal qualities such as reliability, cooperation, discrimination, creativity, responsibility, and accepting constructive criticism. Completion of Communications/Media and TV/Video Production and permission from the instructor are required prerequisites for this course.

PUBLIC SPEAKING (+) (S) (AD)

GRADES 10-12

This alternate day or semester course provides an introduction to public speaking. Students will become acquainted with aspects of the public speaking process by taking part in various activities. Students will compose and present 8-12 speeches of various types, as well as provide encouragement and feedback for peers. Each speech will be accompanied by skill development activities, and students should be ready and willing to speak regularly in front of their peers. Because the class becomes an audience for the speaker, listening skills are an integral component of the course. Each speech will be assessed by the teacher according to predetermined criteria, and will be accompanied by student feedback. Because skill development occurs in class, regular attendance is of the utmost importance. The final assessment will include both a written and an oral component.

CREATIVE WRITING (+) (S) (AD)

GRADES 10-12

This semester/AD course teaches the student to plan, draft, revise, and edit various types of creative writing. In a supportive workshop atmosphere, the student learns and practices the creative process. Students participate in many informal writing experiences, including brainstorming, journal writing, free writing, and group processing. Most of these informal writings act as a springboard for major projects: two major short stories, fifteen to twenty poems, and a one-act play. Students critique and model fiction writers and poets to enrich their literary repertoire. Writing is assessed using rubrics, conferences, checklists, portfolios, and criteria presented at the start of each major writing assignment.

EXPOSITORY WRITING (+) (S) (AD)

GRADES 10-12

This writing course emphasizes improvement in writing skills. Essays written in several rhetorical modes go through various stages of the writing process. Students learn to utilize and implement prewriting, drafting, revising, and editing (both peer and teacher) in preparation for final draft submission of essay assignments. The maintenance of a daily journal and a writing portfolio are required components for this semester/alternate day class. Independent functioning in a writer's workshop atmosphere is a requirement of the course. All student writing is done in class. Because of the workshop nature of the class, regular attendance is mandatory. Writing is assessed using the five domains of writing and other methods of assessment: teacher conferencing, portfolio submission, and/or rhetorical mode criteria as per assignment. Students must enter this course through teacher recommendation.

ACCELERATED COMPOSITION (+) (S) (AD)

GRADES 10-12

This writing course teaches the student to plan, draft, revise, and edit various kinds of college writing. In a supportive, workshop atmosphere, the student learns to write by writing. Students participate in many informal writing experiences, including brainstorming, journal writing, free writing, and group processing. Most of these informal writings are preludes or responses to the ten major writing assignments. Students word process their papers in a computer lab. Students use the Internet to research materials for papers and to access college and university web sites addressing all aspects of writing. Writing is assessed using writing rubrics, conferences, checklists, portfolios, and criteria presented at the beginning of each writing assignment.

	ENGI	LISH ELECTIVE OF	FERINGS	
ENGLISH AREAS	GRADE 9	GRADE 10	GRADE 11	GRADE 12
	Communications/Media	Communications/Media	Communications/Media	Communications/Media (S)
COMMUNICATIONS	(S) (AD)	(S) (AD)	(S) (AD)	(AD)
		TV /Video Production (S)	TV /Video Production (S)	TV /Video Production (S)
		Filmmaking 1 (S) (AD)	Filmmaking 1 (S) (AD)	Filmmaking 1 (S) (AD)
			Accelerated Filmmaking 2	Accelerated Filmmaking 2
			(AD)	(AD)
		Public Speaking (S) (AD)	Public Speaking (S) (AD)	Public Speaking (S) (AD)
			Critical Viewing (S) (AD)	Critical Viewing (S) (AD)
			Independent TV/Video	Independent TV/Video
			Production	Production
DRAMA	Acting I (AD)	Acting I (AD)	Acting I (AD)	Acting I (AD)
		Acting II (AD)	Acting II (AD)	Acting II (AD)
			Directing 1 (AD)	Directing 1 (AD)
				Directing 2 (AD)
LITERATURE		Ancient Myth (S) (AD)	Ancient Myth (S) (AD)	Ancient Myth (S) (AD)
			Multicultural Literature (S) (AD)	Multicultural Literature (S) (AD)
			World Myth (S) (AD)	World Myth (S) (AD)
WRITING		Creative Writing (S) (AD)	Creative Writing (S) (AD)	Creative Writing (S) (AD)
		Expository Writing (S) (AD)	Expository Writing (S) (AD)	Expository Writing (S) (AD)
		Accelerated Composition (S) (AD)	Accelerated Composition (S) (AD)	Accelerated Composition (S) (AD)

FAMILY & CONSUMER SCIENCES



Courses in Family and Consumer Sciences satisfy the Arts and Humanities or free elective requirements for graduation. FCS education provides a unique learning experience that empowers students to manage the everyday challenges of living and working in a diverse, global society. Courses emphasize leadership, coping skills and critical thinking skills needed to deal with the challenges affecting one's environment. Instruction strengthens basic academic skills in language arts, mathematics, science, and social studies, and develops critical-thinking skills through practical applications in real-life situations. Whether students are interested in exploring a variety of content areas or developing a future career pathway, FCS programs offer a wide range of opportunities for all students to develop knowledge, skills, and behaviors necessary for success in the 21st century.

THE WORLD OF FASHION (AD)

GRADES 9-12

This career-oriented course is designed for the student interested in the fashion field or retail merchandising. Topics included in this course focus on the study of fashion history, fashion styles, fashion designers, clothing construction, understanding color and design, textile fabrics, clothing care basics, and clothing repair. Professional merchandising techniques, buying and marketing concepts may be addressed. The curriculum is designed to prepare students to think, to make decisions, to interact effectively, to use creativity to solve problems, and to communicate using the latest technology. The skills of writing, listening, and speaking are important components of this course. The knowledge and skills taught provide our students with the tools for personal and professional development. Opportunities may be provided for the students to participate in a school fashion show.

INTERIOR DESIGN (AD)

GRADES 9-12

Interior design introduces students to the professional technical and aesthetic aspects of the interior environment. Students study a broad range of economic, technological, environmental, and maintenance factors associated with the design process. Topics include housing and furniture styles, architecture, floor planning skills, elements and principles of design and influences related to interior styles. A wide range of activities are offered in order to meet the needs of students with varying levels of ability. Individual and team projects, research and laboratory work including mock-ups, floor plans, and color charts enhance the students' in class learning experiences.

LIFE ON YOUR OWN (AD)

GRADES 9-12

This comprehensive course builds knowledge, skills, attitudes, and behaviors students will need as they prepare to take the next steps toward adulthood in today's ever-changing society. Students will learn the basics for managing the many aspects of adult life, including the college experience. Topics include setting S.M.A.R.T. goals, financial management, consumerism, interpersonal relationships, food preparation, and decision making. In addition, the course provides practical information on how to find a job, interviewing skills, how to manage clothing and housing resources and how to maintain health through lifestyle management, exercise and good nutrition. The course consists of lectures, labs, projects and guest speakers.

CHILD DEVELOPMENT: PARENTING (AD)

GRADES 9-12

This course is designed to help young men and women think about parenting as one of the choices they will have to make during their lifetimes, and to consider how they will make those choices responsibly. The curriculum will benefit students who plan to be parents or pursue a profession in a child related career such as education, child psychology, pediatric medicine, or family therapy. The course deals with responsibilities involved with committed relationships and parenting including infant care, finances, family relationships and nutrition. The students work independently and cooperatively on special projects which will enhance their understanding of the growing child. Students may participate in a learning activity using infant simulators. Group discussions and individual student input will be emphasized.

ACCELERATED CHILD DEVELOPMENT: NURSERY SCHOOL (YR) GRADES 9-12

This career oriented course provides an opportunity for high school students interested in pursuing a child related career such as elementary education, early childhood education, child specialist, child psychologist or child care employee/owner to actively participate in an on-site pre-school laboratory. Emphasis is placed on the study of children from 3-5 years of age including their physical, mental, emotional, and social development. Detailed written child case studies will be required of all students. Some of the students' responsibilities include planning and preparing lesson centers, writing and implementing daily lesson plans, completing daily observations of children, planning and implementing activities and corresponding with parents on a weekly basis. Additional class assignments such as developing a portfolio, setting up a nursery school lab and writing case studies are used to further prepare students for a career involving children. **Students may also take this class as non-accelerated course**.

ACCELERATED NUTRITION AND DIETETICS (YR)

GRADES 10-12

This course is designed for the student who plans to pursue a career in a health field, such as medicine, dietetics, sports and fitness training, nursing or in the scientific aspect of Food Service. Nutrition and Dietetics includes a study of basic nutrition concepts and their application. An overview of carbohydrates, lipid, proteins, vitamins, and minerals is presented in detail in this course. Students are familiarized with the biochemical principles related to the macronutrients and micronutrients. Other topics include food analysis, food preparation, and adaptation for both normal and special diets, medical terminology, the role of food in the promotion of a healthy lifestyle, the use of the food exchange system, and some of the basic principles of the dietary treatment of diabetes, cardiovascular disease, and obesity. Students will participate in a variety of science based laboratory experiences, food preparation for nutritional value, and research of current nutrition topics. To cover the cost of supplies and equipment, a \$20 lab fee is required per year.

PERSONAL NUTRITION (AD)

GRADES 9-12

This course is designed to encourage individuals to achieve a healthy lifestyle through improved nutrition. The goal of this course is to enable students to develop the knowledge skills, and behaviors needed to avoid health risks and maintain optimum health throughout their life. Contemporary nutrition topics relevant to today's young adults will be explored through individual and cooperative research, demonstrations and special projects. Personal nutrition includes the study of all major nutrient groups. Basic scientific principles of nutrition will be applied to real life situations. Students will have the opportunity to apply their learning by evaluating and preparing a variety of healthy and delicious recipes. To cover the cost of supplies and equipment, a \$20 lab fee is required per year.

INTRODUCTION TO FOOD PREP (AD)

GRADES 9-12

This course covers basic and modern food preparation, emphasizing ease of preparation, food safety and sanitation, convenience, nutrition, and time management. Teamwork and cooperative learning will be emphasized. Each student's cooking skills will be developed so that they may prepare healthful, nutritious foods

and meals for themselves and others. This is a learn-by-doing course, consisting mostly of food laboratories, demonstrations, research and projects. To cover the cost of supplies and equipment, a \$20 lab fee is required per year.

CULINARY ARTS/REGIONAL CUISINE (YR)

GRADES 10-12

This course covers more advanced food preparation techniques and complete meal service. All food groups will be studied in detail, emphasizing food safety and sanitation, nutrition, cost analysis, food presentation and service styles. Opportunities will be provided in pastry and baking applications. This course will provide students with a multi-cultural experience as they study the foods, dietary needs, family traditions and celebrations of people around the world. This is a learn by-doing course consisting of food laboratories, demonstrations, research and projects. To cover the cost of supplies and equipment, a \$20 lab fee is required per semester. Upper classmen interested in more sophisticated food preparations should choose Culinary Arts rather than Introduction to Food Prep.

HEALTH



Required health instruction takes place in tenth grade. Experiences in health will revolve around the immediate needs of the students plus the health problems of adult living which they will soon face. Emphasis is on the improvement of health knowledge, positive attitudes and desirable health practices.

For students eligible for special education services, the selection of appropriate academic and elective classes will be determined by the IEP team.

HEALTH AND WELLNESS 10 (AD)

GRADE 10

Health and Wellness, an introduction to human sexuality, presents to students factual knowledge, opportunities to develop communication skills, practice in decision-making, goal setting and conflict management, and creates awareness of the contemporary social issues facing men and women today. This course will help students, who are confronted with a quickly changing and varied society, learn how to direct their own lives in a way which is consistent with family and personal values. State-mandated HIV/AIDS Education is also a part of this program. Students who do not wish to cover issues related to human sexuality topics will be given an alternate learning experience.

ACCELERATED EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT & DRIVER ED THEORY (AD) GRADES 9-12

This course is designed for the student who is interested in developing lifetime First Aid and CPR skills. Students will be trained in First Aid and CPR skills prescribed by the American Red Cross. Instruction in the use of Automated External Defibrillators, Personal Safety and other first aid procedures will also be included in this course. Students will have the opportunity to earn Red Cross certification in First Aid and CPR at the conclusion of this course. This course will be taught by a certified Red Cross instructor/teacher.

The second half of this course is devoted to Driver Education Theory instruction. Students will receive classroom instruction in Driver Theory as mandated by the Pennsylvania Department of Education curriculum. Upon successful completion of this course, students will receive a certificate of participation in a certified Driver Education Theory course. This certification may be used with auto insurance companies for discounts, where applicable. This course does not include behind the wheel and on the road instruction.

ACCELERATED SENIOR SEMINAR: LIFE 101 (AD)

GRADE 12

Within a supervised educational setting, this senior seminar has been developed to enable mature twelfth grade students to discuss current trends and difficulties within human relationships. This course encourages students to explore issues and attitudes in all areas of their lives. Throughout the course, there is critical exploration of various social issues in human sexuality. These sensitive topics may include teenage pregnancy, sexual assault, sexually transmitted infections (including HIV/AIDS Education), sexual orientation, contraception, and abstinence education. Students are encouraged to examine the multicultural, heterogeneous expression of values around these topics. The course also helps students integrate knowledge of self and others with better communication skills, increased ability to manage conflict, and increased insight in making decisions. Community resources, including speakers who are familiar with issues through their own experiences, are utilized to enhance learning and develop awareness of the complexity of the issues. Because of the sensitive topics explored, parental permission is required to schedule this course.

MATHEMATICS



Beyond the attainment of three credits to satisfy the mathematics requirement for graduation, additional courses taken in this department satisfy the free elective requirement for graduation.

For students eligible for special education services, the selection of appropriate academic and elective classes will be determined by the IEP team.

All students need to take three years of high school mathematics in grades 9-12 in order to graduate. A maximum of one credit may be taken outside of the Mathematics Department (from the following: Accelerated Computer Science 1, Accelerated Computer Science 2, Advanced Placement Computer Science A). Placement in the appropriate mathematics course is made on the basis of student success in prior mathematics courses, prognostic tests, and teacher recommendation. Although three credits of math are required for graduation, most colleges specify successful completion of a full year of Algebra 1, Algebra 2 and Geometry. Many colleges now require four years of high school math. Please note that many mathematics courses require that the student has a graphing calculator. We recommend the TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus. (The TI-85 does not have the needed statistical capabilities). Although other graphing calculators may suffice, all instruction will be done using the TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus. **All courses below incorporate STEM principles to build a foundation for STEM-related fields.

COUNCIL ROCK HIGH SCHOOL RECOMMENDED MATH PATTERNS

GRADE 9	GRADE 10	GRADE 11	GRADE 12
Concepts in	Algebra 1	Algebra 2	Geometry
Mathematics			
Algebra 1	Algebra 2	Geometry	Analysis
			Trigonometry/Statistics
Accelerated Algebra 1	Accelerated Algebra 2	Accelerated Geometry	Accelerated Analysis
			Trigonometry/Statistics
Accelerated Algebra 2	Accelerated Geometry	Accelerated Analysis	AP Calculus AB
			AP Statistics
			Accelerated Calculus
			Accelerated Statistics
Honors Algebra 2	Honors Geometry	Honors Analysis	AP Calculus BC
			AP Statistics

Placement of students will occur through their level of achievement, the results of testing, and teacher recommendation. Letters of record, including parent's signature, are required if the student selects a course other than that recommended by the school's professional staff.

Please also note: (1) students in the honors course sequence are expected to maintain a solid "B" average throughout these courses; and (2) all other students are expected to maintain a strong "C" average to remain in any given sequence.

CONCEPTS IN MATHEMATICS (YR)

The content and instructional practices of this course are designed to transition students to the successful completion of Algebra. Pre-algebra topics will include: Number systems and operations, systems of measurement (linear, square, and cubic), ratio, and proportion, percent, probability, statistics and data analysis. Algebraic topics will include the study of expressions, properties, equations, inequalities, functions and their graphs, linear system, properties of exponents, operations with polynomials and angle relationships. A graphing calculator is required for this course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus and the TI-84 Plus are the recommended calculators.

ALGEBRA 1 (+) (YR)

This Keystone preparation course provides students with a mathematically sound introduction to Algebra 1 and is designed for the student whose past achievement indicates a need for a more gradual pace. Course content will include the following topics: operations with real numbers and expressions, linear equations and inequalities, functions, coordinate geometry, and data analysis. A graphing calculator is required and is an integral part of the course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus or the TI-84 are the recommended calculators. In this course students will prepare for the Keystone Algebra 1 exam which they will take in May.

ACCELERATED ALGEBRA 1 (+) (YR)

This course is designed to give students a mathematically sound introduction to algebra. The student is given the opportunity to develop fundamental algebraic skills and concepts based on the structure of the system of real numbers such as equations, inequalities, problem solving, polynomials, factoring, graphs and functions, simultaneous equations, irrational numbers, square roots, relations, functions, and variations. Because graphing activities are integrated throughout classroom presentations and textbook activities, a graphing calculator is required for this course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus are the recommended calculators. In this course students will prepare for the Keystone Algebra 1 Exam which they will take in the spring to that school year.

ALGEBRA 2 (+) (YR)

This course extends the concepts learned in Algebra 1 and provides a sound introduction to Algebra 2. The topics covered in this course include the conceptual development and understanding of: operations and complex numbers, non-linear expressions and equations, patterns, relations, functions, applications of functions, and data analysis. Mathematical modeling and applications will be applied with problem solving. A graphing calculator is required and is an integral part of the course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus or the TI-84 are the recommended calculators.

ACCELERATED ALGEBRA 2 (+) (YR)

This course reviews and extends the concepts of Accelerated Algebra 1 by going into more depth in studying equations, inequalities, problem solving, factoring, irrational numbers, linear equations, and simultaneous equations. New topics include the study of polynomial, quadratic, radical, rational, exponential, greatest integer, and logarithmic functions. Also covered in the course are matrices, linear regression lines, and scatter plotting graphs. A graphing calculator is required for this course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus are the recommended calculators. Recommended prerequisite is a grade of at least "C" in Accelerated Algebra 1.

HONORS ALGEBRA 2 (+) (YR) (V)

This course covers the same material as Accelerated Algebra 2 but in greater depth. The course also covers additional topics; therefore, the pace is more rapid than that of Accelerated Algebra 2. Honors Algebra 2 reviews and extends the concepts of Honors Algebra 1 by going into more depth in studying equations, inequalities, problem solving, factoring, irrational numbers, linear equations and simultaneous equations.

New topics include the study of complex numbers, functions and their inverses, matrices, linear programming, polynomial, quadratic, exponential and logarithmic functions. Students will be required to research and present a minimum of three topical projects that relate to specific concepts that are presented during the course of the year.

Students should be highly motivated, able to think and process math concepts quickly and in alternate fashion. Students should be recommended by their teacher and must have earned a solid "B" in Honors Algebra 1 in the middle school. Because graphing activities are integrated throughout classroom presentations and textbook activities, a graphing calculator is required for this course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus are the recommended calculators.

GEOMETRY (+) (YR)

This full-year course is a study of the major ideas of geometry and the basic properties of geometric figures, without an emphasis on formal proof. Topics include angles, angle measurement, triangles, congruent triangles, quadrilaterals and other polygons, circles, parallel lines, solid figures, perimeter, area, volume, and geometric probability. An ability to perform basic algebra skills is necessary. Students who were successful in Algebra 1 will be encouraged to continue their study of mathematics with Geometry.

This course is not appropriate for students preparing for a scientifically oriented college curriculum and does not satisfy prerequisites for Accelerated Analysis. A graphing calculator is required for this course. The recommended calculators are the TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus.

ACCELERATED GEOMETRY (+) (YR)

This course is a rigorous study of the concepts of geometry requiring analytical thinking in addition to factual knowledge of the material. Students develop their deductive reasoning skills throughout the course through informal justifications and arguments as well as formal proofs. All of the topics of Geometry are covered but in greater depth. Other topics such as symbolic logic, loci, and coordinate transformation are also included. Many algebraic concepts and skills from Accelerated Algebra 2 are integrated throughout the course. This course is recommended for those who have successfully completed Accelerated Algebra 2 with a grade of "C" or better and who plan to study Accelerated Analysis. A graphing calculator is required in the course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus are the recommended calculators.

HONORS GEOMETRY (+) (YR)

In addition to the topics covered in Accelerated Geometry, this course includes the following topics: Non-Euclidean geometry, rules of logic, extensive analytical problem solving, the axiomatic development of Euclidean geometry, and historical contributions in the development of geometry. Although many topics are similar between the two courses, Honors Geometry students are expected to study these same topics in greater depth and at a more rapid pace, with a significant emphasis on analytical reasoning skills, a formal mathematical vocabulary, techniques in perspective drawing, and formal geometric construction.

Students are also required to independently research and deliver a presentation on an assigned mathematical topic. Students will read and write a critical analysis of the book <u>Flatland</u>. Students should have earned at least a strong "B" in Honors Algebra 2 with teacher recommendation. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus, and TI-84 Plus are the recommended graphing calculators for this course.

TRIGONOMETRY (+) (S)

This course has been designed for college-bound students who have completed Accelerated Algebra 2 and Accelerated Geometry with a grade of at least "C," or Algebra 2 and Geometry with a grade of at least "B." Course content includes the study of trigonometric functions both as circular functions and as ratios in similar right triangles. Throughout the course real-life problem situations will be used to connect trigonometry to many

other fields and occupations. Algebra skills will be strengthened as needed. Technology will be an integral part of instruction.

A graphing calculator is required for this course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus or TI-84 Plus are the recommended calculators. Students who require a more rigorous pre-calculus preparation should take Accelerated Analysis, which includes all of the trigonometry presented in this course.

STATISTICS (S) (+)

This introductory statistics course has been designed for college-bound students who have completed Accelerated Algebra 2 and Accelerated Geometry with a grade of at least "C" or Algebra 2 and Geometry with a grade of at least "B." Students will learn methods for displaying distributions with graphs and numbers as well as the normal distribution. They will examine relationships using scatter plots and least squares regression and correlation. They will work with designing samples and experiments in combination with some basic principles of probability.

Throughout the course real-life problem situations will be used to connect statistics to many other fields and occupations. Algebra skills will be strengthened as needed. Technology will be an integral part of instruction. A graphing calculator is required for this course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus are the recommended calculators.

ACCELERATED STATISTICS (+) (YR) - STEM

This statistics course has been designed for college-bound students who have completed Accelerated Algebra 2 and Accelerated Geometry with a grade of at least "C" or Algebra 2 and Geometry with a grade of at least "B". There will be an emphasis on organizing data, averages and variation, elementary probability, the binomial and normal distributions and inferential statistics. Throughout the course real-life problem situations will be used to connect statistics to many other fields and occupations. Algebra skills will be strengthened as needed. Technology will be an integral part of instruction. A graphing calculator is required for this course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus and TI-84 Plus are the recommended calculators.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT STATISTICS (+) (YR) - STEM

The purpose of this course is to introduce students to the major concepts and tools for collecting, analyzing, and drawing conclusions from data. Students are exposed to four broad conceptual themes. They are exploring data: observing patterns and departures from patterns; planning a study: deciding what and how to measure; anticipating patterns: producing models using probability theory and simulation, and statistical inference: confirming models.

Students who successfully complete the course and take the Advanced Placement Statistics examination may receive credit, advanced placement or both for a one semester introductory college statistics course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus graphing calculator is required for this course. The prerequisite for this course is Accelerated Algebra 2.

ANALYSIS (+) (YR)

This course has been designed for college-bound students who have completed Algebra 2 and Geometry. Topics covered include an extension of algebra skills including using functions as models for a number of applied settings; sequences and series; probability and statistics; matrices; trigonometry; linear, quadratic, exponential and logarithmic functions. A graphing calculator is required for this course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus are the recommended calculators.

ACCELERATED ANALYSIS (+) (YR)

This course is designed to provide a strong foundation in pre-calculus concepts, techniques, and applications to prepare students for more advanced work in mathematics. The primary topics studied are graphical analysis; functions including polynomial, rational, exponential, and logarithmic; complex numbers; polar coordinates and complex numbers in polar form; discrete mathematics; data analysis; and trigonometry. Problems will relate abstract concepts to real world situations. Students electing this course should have completed Accelerated Algebra 2 and Accelerated Geometry with grades of "B" or better in both courses. A graphing calculator is required for this course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus are the recommended calculators.

Students electing this course will be required to complete a review packet over the summer to be submitted at the beginning of the school year. A grade for this assignment will be part of the student's first marking period grade.

HONORS ANALYSIS (+) (YR)

This course covers the same material as Accelerated Analysis, although in greater depth and at a faster pace. It also includes limits, parametric equations, and some topics from statistics. Students must have the recommendation of their previous teacher. Juniors intending to take AP Calculus BC Level as seniors should elect this course and must maintain a "B" average throughout this course to do so. A graphing calculator is required for this course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus are the recommended calculators.

Students electing this course will be required to complete a review packet over the summer to be submitted at the beginning of the school year. A grade for this assignment will be part of the student's first marking period grade.

ACCELERATED CALCULUS (+) (YR) - STEM

This course is intended to provide an introduction to college mathematics. The topics covered will include functions, graphs, limits, rate of change, formal differentiation, applications of the derivative, integration, applications of integration, and transcendental functions. A graphing calculator is required for this course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus are the recommended calculators. Students are expected to have a strong background in Accelerated Algebra 2, Accelerated Geometry, and Accelerated Analysis. This course does not prepare students to take the Advanced Placement Exam in May.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT CALCULUS AB (+) (YR) - STEM

This course is provided as an introduction to college mathematics. The topics covered are those typically found in the first semester and some of the second semester of a college level course, including functions, graphs, limits, rate of change, formal differentiation, applications of the derivative, integration, applications of integration, and transcendental functions. A graphing calculator is required for this course. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus are the recommended calculators.

Students are expected to have a strong background (minimum grade of "B") in Accelerated Algebra 2, Accelerated Geometry, and Accelerated Analysis. This course consists of a full academic year of work in calculus and topics covered in courses at the college level. It is expected that students taking this course will seek college credit or placement by taking the Advanced Placement examination in May.

Students electing this course will be required to complete a review packet over the summer to be submitted at the beginning of the school year. A grade for this assignment will be part of the student's first marking period grade.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT CALCULUS BC (+) (YR) - STEM

This course is provided as an introduction to college mathematics. The topics covered are those typically found in the first two and one-half semesters of college level courses, including functions, graphs, limits, rate of change, formal differentiation, applications of the derivative, integration, applications of integration,

transcendental functions, differential equations, polar equations, vectors and parametric equations, and sequences and series.

In order to be successful in this course, students must have a strong background in Honors Algebra 2, Honors Geometry and Honors Analysis. This course will cover the content in the BC level of the Advanced Placement examination which students are strongly encouraged to take in May. Graphing calculators will be used extensively in the course and are required on the Advanced Placement examination. The TI-83, TI-83 Plus, or TI-84 Plus are the recommended calculators.

Students electing this course will be required to complete a review packet over summer to be submitted at the beginning of the school year. A grade for this assignment will be part of the student's first marking period grade.

COMPUTER COURSES

Computer programming courses may satisfy up to one of the three mathematics credits required for graduation.

ACCELERATED COMPUTER SCIENCE 1 (S) (AD) - STEM

GRADES 9-12

This course is open to all high school students who are at least taking Accelerated Algebra I and are interested in the study of computer programming. This entry-level course is taught using the C# (pronounced "see sharp") language, within the Microsoft Visual Studio. NET environment and will focus on the development of fundamental programming skills. The topics in this course of study include a review of the .NET Integrated Development Environment, basic structure and syntax of the C# language, an introduction to object-oriented design using classes and objects, decision making statements, iteration structures (loops), arrays, and string manipulation. The history of computers and programming will also briefly be discussed. Upon completion of Computer Science 1 with at least a "C", students are encouraged to move on to Computer Science 2.

ACCELERATED COMPUTER SCIENCE 2 (S) (AD) - STEM

GRADES 10-12

This course is open to all high school students who are at least taking Accelerated Algebra 2 and have successfully completed Computer Science 2. Students will learn the fundamental skills that are required to design and develop object-oriented applications for the Web and Microsoft Windows. This course is taught using the C# language and will serve as an extension to the concepts introduced in Computer Science 1. Additional topics in the course of study include file handling and database manipulation, methods, enumerations and structures, and an introduction to windows forms and painting. The course will be highly project based and geared towards real-world applications using a variety of hands-on lab exercises, case studies, and team learning tasks. It is recommended that students take Computer Science 2 before taking Advanced Placement Computer Science.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT COMPUTER SCIENCE A (YR) _ STEM GRADES 11-12

This advanced course is provided as an introduction to college-level computer programming, using the Java language. It is open to students who have at least successfully completed Accelerated Algebra 2 and have a solid foundation in object-oriented computer programming concepts (i.e. C#, C++, Visual Basic, and Java). A fundamental skill to the study of computer science is to develop computer programs to solve problems. A large part of this course is built around the development of computer programs or parts of programs to solve a given problem using object-oriented designs. The topics in the course of study include the use of standard Java classes, objects, data types, methods, decision making statements, string handling, the application of data storage and data processing, and other algorithms. Students will also learn to create and manipulate applications, applets, and GUI components. The course will be highly project based and geared towards real-world applications using a variety of hands-on lab exercises, case studies, and team learning tasks. It is expected

that students will seek college credit by taking the Advanced Placement Computer Science Examination (Level A) in May.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT COMPUTER SCIENCE PRINCIPLES (YR) - STEM GRADES 10-12

AP Computer Science Principles offers a multidisciplinary approach to teaching the underlying principles of computation. It is open to students who have completed Algebra 2 with a strong foundation in function notation and problem solving. The course will introduce students to the creative aspects of programming, abstractions, algorithms, large data sets, the Internet, cybersecurity concerns, and computing impacts. AP Computer Science Principles also gives students the opportunity to use current technologies to create innovative computational artifacts for both self-expression and problem solving. Students will develop these artifacts using the same creative processes artists, writers, computer scientists, and engineers use to bring ideas to life. It is expected that students will seek college credit by taking the Advanced Placement Computer Science Principles Examination in May.

MUSIC



Courses in this department satisfy the arts and humanities or free elective requirements for graduation.

For students eligible for special education services, the selection of appropriate academic and elective classes will be determined by the IEP team.

PERFORMING GROUPS

Course credit will be given for successful participation in Band, Choir, and Orchestra. Participation in after-school rehearsals and public performances is an integral and necessary part of membership in these groups. In order to participate in any or several of the following performing groups, students must enroll in at least one of the performing groups as a class.

MARCHING CONCERT BAND (AD)

GRADES 9-12

Marching Concert Band is open to all woodwind, brass and percussion players who are interested in developing individual and ensemble skills. Emphasis is placed on music reading, tone production, blend, balance, and phrasing. Students will perform all marching band music and develop their skill level through mainstream Concert Band literature for the remainder of the year. Students may remain in the Marching Concert Band for all four years or audition for the Marching Symphonic Band. Members of the Marching Band are required to attend a pre-school band camp, after school rehearsals, and all performances. Band Camp will begin in August. A full rehearsal and performance schedule will be given to each student in May of the preceding year. Students interested in taking Marching Concert Band as an accelerated course will be required to complete additional higher level work.

ACCELERATED MARCHING SYMPHONIC BAND (AD)

GRADES 9-12

The Marching Symphonic Band is an advanced level ensemble. Students chosen for this group must be able to perform the highest levels of high school band literature and must display high individual skill levels. Selection is at the director's discretion by audition. Members of the Marching Band are required to attend a preschool band camp, after school rehearsals, and all performances. Band camp will begin in August. A full rehearsal and performance schedule will be given to each student in May of the preceding year.

CONCERT BAND (AD) GRADES 9-12

This course is designed for those students interested in playing in band who do not wish to participate in marching band. The students will study standard band literature. Emphasis is placed on music reading, tone production, blend, balance, and phrasing. The performance nature of this course requires attendance at any rehearsals and performances which are scheduled beyond the school day. Students interested in taking Concert Band as an accelerated course will be required to complete additional higher level work.

CHORALE (AD) GRADES 9-12

Chorale is open to all students interested in developing their individual vocal and choral skills. Emphasis is placed on proper breathing, tone production, diction, musicality and music reading proficiency. A variety of suitable literature, ranging from Renaissance to Contemporary, will be studied and performed in concert. The performance nature of this course requires attendance after school for scheduled rehearsals and concerts. Chorale rehearses monthly after school and more frequently prior to concerts. Participation in these rehearsals, as well as all scheduled performances, is a requirement. All freshmen and new members to the choir program who intend to

participate in Symphonic Choir must take one year of Chorale. Students may remain in Chorale for all four years of high school. Students who wish to advance into Symphonic Choir may audition toward the end of the year. Students interested in taking Chorale as an accelerated course will be required to complete additional higher level work.

ACCELERATED SYMPHONIC CHOIR (AD)

GRADES 9-12

Symphonic Choir is an advanced level ensemble. Students chosen for this group must be able to perform the highest level of high school choral literature, and must demonstrate high skill levels. Selection is at the director's discretion by audition. Students will advance their individual vocal and choral skills with an emphasis on tone production, breathing, diction, musicality, music reading proficiency and rehearsal techniques. A variety of advanced choral literature, ranging from Renaissance to contemporary, will be studied and performed in concert. The performance nature of this course requires attendance after school for scheduled rehearsals and concerts. The Symphonic Choir rehearses monthly after school, and additional rehearsals will be scheduled at the discretion of the director to prepare for local, national, and international events.

STRING ORCHESTRA (AD)

GRADES 9-12

String Orchestra is open to all stringed instrument students (violin, viola, cello, bass) interested in developing their individual and ensemble skills. Emphasis is placed on proper bow control, tone production, intonation, and phrasing. A variety of string orchestra literature ranging from Baroque to Contemporary will be studied and performed in concert. String Orchestra occasionally rehearses after school in preparation for concerts. Participation in these concerts, as well as all scheduled performances, is required. All freshmen who intend to participate in Symphony Orchestra must take one year of String Orchestra. Students may remain in String Orchestra for four years, or may audition to advance to Symphony Orchestra toward the end of each year. Symphony Orchestra performs an advanced level of high school literature, which demands advanced skill levels and a higher level of commitment. Students interested in taking String Orchestra as an accelerated course will be required to complete additional higher level work.

ACCELERATED SYMPHONY ORCHESTRA (AD)

GRADES 10-12

Students chosen for this group must be able to perform the highest levels of high school orchestral literature, and must demonstrate high individual skill levels. Membership is open to all string (violin, viola, cello and bass), woodwind, brass and percussion students. Selection is at the director's discretion by audition. The literature to be studied and performed will consist of the standard symphonic works, as well as lighter pop and show selections. The performance nature of this course requires attendance after school for scheduled rehearsals and concerts.

ACADEMIC COURSES

MUSIC THEORY 1 (YR)

GRADES 9-12

This course provides the student with an understanding of the building blocks of music. After completing this course, students will be prepared to enter a college music theory class. Topics of study include elements of notation such as pitch and rhythm, study of the piano keyboard, the circle of 5ths, major and minor scales, and basic chord progressions in tonal music. Activities include writing music, sight-singing, aural analysis of melodies, intervals, and chords, visual analysis of intervals, chords, chord progressions, and playing scales, intervals, and simple chords on the piano.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT MUSIC THEORY (YR)

GRADES 10-12

This course is primarily designed for those students in grades 10-12 who have completed Music Theory 1 and desire advanced musical studies. The course will include studies in advanced harmony and analysis of

musical forms and compositions. Instrumental or vocal arrangements will be performed for analysis. Students who have not completed Theory 1 may test into this course, but in all instances, students electing this course must have the teacher's approval. Students will be prepared to take the Advanced Placement Music Theory Examination.

HONORS MUSIC ARRANGING (YR)

GRADES 10-12

This is a course designed to acquaint students with the skills of orchestration. Students will be required to analyze musical compositions and arrange music for various media. A thorough knowledge of music theory is required. Students will be instructed in the usage of music notation software.

INTRODUCTION TO GUITAR (AD)

GRADES 9-12

Interested in starting a garage band of your own? Introduction to guitar will get you started by learning tuning, chords, and melody playing. This is a hands-on course where you learn skills by playing songs. This course is designed for those students with less than 6 months experience on guitar. Guitars will be provided, or bring your own.

INTERMEDIATE GUITAR (AD)

GRADES 9-12

Expand your guitar skills with Intermediate Guitar. Students will concentrate on chords, hand positions, and melodic technique. Students with guitar experience may elect this course with the instructor's approval. Guitars will be provided, or bring your own.

IMPROVISATION (AD)

GRADES 9-12

Learn the skills of jazz improvisation with this hands-on course. Students will develop their creative abilities by soloing over the chords used in jazz and popular music. (i.e., Gmi7, C9, Fmaj7) You will develop skills at selecting the proper improvisation scales, voicing chords, and creating bass lines. Traditional jazz literature will also be taught. The ability to read music is a prerequisite. Percussion players are required to double on mallets or keyboard.

MUSIC TECHNOLOGY (AD)

GRADES 9-12

Music production in the 21st Century is done with music software. Get started on producing and recording music with the Music Technology course. This hands-on course teaches basic keyboard skills, live recording techniques, Wave editing, musical sequencing, virtual drumming, and film scoring. Students will develop the ability to read and notate music and arrange musical sequences using MIDI technology.

MUSICAL THEATER (AD)

GRADES 9-12

From Vaudeville to Broadway, from George M. Cohan to Leonard Bernstein, from *Strike Up The Band* to *Wicked*, American musical theater is a unique performance art. This course engages students in a variety of <u>performance oriented activities</u> exploring all aspects of musical theater. It combines individual action, collaboration, teamwork and research. Students will learn how to audition, utilize the stage-singing voice, participate in stage movement and songs, analyze and critique music theater performances and perform in a series of musical theater scenes.

PHYSICAL EDUCATION



Courses in this department satisfy the physical education requirement for graduation. The elective courses may be taken to satisfy the free elective graduation requirement.

For students eligible for special education services, the selection of appropriate academic and elective classes will be determined by the IEP team.

PHYSICAL EDUCATION (AD)

GRADES 9-11-12

The Physical Education program for students in grades 9 through 12 consists of elective offerings that include a variety of lifetime, team, and fitness/dance conditioning activities as well as swimming which is required of all ninth graders (North only). Students will also be encouraged to maintain and improve their fitness levels and will be tested periodically for physical fitness.

Physical Education is **required in grades 9, 11, and 12**. Students are to participate in Physical Education activities as follows:

- 1. Basic swimming course (North only)
- 2. Lifetime Activities
- 3. Team Activities
- 4. Fitness/Dance Activities

Students will be evaluated on their movement, skill development, and achievement on written assessments.

CURRICULUM OFFERINGS					
LIFETIME ACTIVITIES	TEAM SPORTS & GAMES	FITNESS & DANCE ACTIVITIES			
Aquatics: (North only): Aquatics, Leadership, Lifeguarding/CPR, Water Games	Fielding & Striking Games: Baseball/Softball, Kickball & variations	<u>Dance:</u> Hip Hop, Square, Line, etc.			
Individual Performance Activities: Tumbling, Self- Defense, etc.	Invasion Games: Basketball, Football, Handball, Hockey, Soccer, etc.	<u>Fitness:</u> Aerobics, Weight Training, Fitness Walking, etc.			
Net & Wall Games: Badminton, Pickle Ball, Table Tennis, Tennis, Volleyball, etc.					
Outdoor Pursuits: Cooperative Activities, Rock Climbing, etc.					
Target Games: Archery, Bowling, Disc Golf, Golf, etc.					

ACCELERATED PHYSICAL EDUCATION: TEAM GAMES & SPORTS (AD) GRADES 9-12

This course is designed for students who wish to participate in an advanced physical education experience that will focus specifically on team games and sports. Students will receive instruction in advanced skills and strategies to participate in invasion games, such as football, basketball and floor/street hockey and fielding and striking games, such as baseball and softball. In addition, this course will focus on teaching personal and social responsibility by emphasizing sportsmanship, leadership and teamwork. (This course is not a substitute for the required physical education course.)

ACCELERATED PHYSICAL EDUCATION: INDIVIDUAL ACTIVITIES (AD) GRADES 9-12

This course is designed for students who wish to participate in an advanced physical education experience that will focus specifically on individual activities. Students will receive instruction in advanced skills and strategies to participate in lifetime activities, such as tennis, golf and rock climbing and fitness activities, such as weight training and conditioning activities. In addition, this course will focus on teaching fitness knowledge; students will develop a fitness and nutrition plan and learn how to use physical activity as a strategy for stress management. Aquatic activities will be at North only (This course is not a substitute for the required physical education course.)

PHYSICAL EDUCATION 10 (AD)

GRADE 10

This elective course is offered to 10th grade students who wish to continue to stay physically active and continue developing their athletic skills for present and future leisure pursuits. Students will continue to participate in an elective program which offers a variety of lifetime, team and fitness/dance activities. Emphasis is placed on active movement, skill development and knowledge competencies in selected activities. Students will also participate in periodic physical fitness testing during the school year (This course is not a substitute for the required physical education course in grades 9, 11, or 12.)

PUBLICATION DESIGN



Courses in this area satisfy the Free Elective requirement for graduation.

ACCELERATED PUBLICATION DESIGN 1 (AD)

GRADES 9-12

Students will learn the essentials of photojournalism and computer skills to produce real world products such as the school yearbook. Students with an interest in photography, journalism, and/or graphic design will combine these disciplines and interact as part of a design team. Layout design, Internet research, file management, photography, interviewing, and communication skills are essential components of this course.

The course offers an excellent opportunity for learning across the curriculum. Students will write articles, create headlines, copy, and concise captions, as well as develop theme ideas incorporating the rules of grammar and style, in a time sensitive, real world setting. The course requires students work independently at times and have good time management skills. **The course requires a significant portion of after-school time.** Students enrolled in the course must be on the yearbook staff.

ACCELERATED PUBLICATION DESIGN 2 (AD)

GRADES 10-12

Prerequisite: Completion of Publication Design 1 (B or better), and completion of an honors level writing course (B or better) OR instructor's written recommendation.

Students will use the skills learned in Publication Design 1 to provide leadership and organizational structure for students in the level one course; they will be expected to become 'experts' in one area (photography, software, interviewing, layout design, copy writing, etc.) and to use the knowledge they gained in Publication Design 1 to instruct the class in that skill through a formalized lesson. Also, level two students are expected to assist the level one students in completing their assignments accurately and efficiently.

Enrolling in this course signifies an increase in commitment to the program: **extensive** after school time is required for successful completion of the course.

SCIENCE



Beyond the attainment of 3 credits to satisfy the science requirement for graduation, additional courses taken in this department satisfy the free elective requirement for graduation.

For students eligible for special education services, the selection of appropriate academic and elective classes will be determined by the IEP team.

The science curriculum at Council Rock High School consists of three sequences. It is crucial that students follow the sequence recommended by their counselor. The student recommendation is based on grade performance, standardized tests, teacher recommendation, reading level, mathematics level, and the level of difficulty of the courses. **All courses below incorporate STEM principles to build a foundation for STEM-related fields.

	Acce	SCIENCE CO		ement	
GRADE 9			DE 10		GRADE 11
Physical Science		Biol	logy	Chemistry and/or	
					Science Electives
Accelerated Physical So	cience	Accelerate	ed Biology	A	ccelerated Chemistry
				(or Chemistry and/or
					Science Electives
Honors Biology		Honors Ch	nemistry or		Honors Physics or
		Accelerated	l Chemistry	Acc	elerated Physics and/or
					Science Electives
		SCIENCE E			
Astronomy	Accele	rated Forensics 1	Plant Scien	ce	AP Biology
Meteorology	Accele	rated Forensics 2	Animal Scie	nce	AP Chemistry
Physics	A	Accelerated	Accelerated Beh	avioral	AP Environmental
	Microbiology		Science		Science
Environmental Science	Accelerated Physics		Honors Anato	omy	AP Physics C:
					Mechanics
	Hono	rs Experimental	Honors Phys	sics	AP Physics C:
	Rese	earch in STEM			Mechanics & Electricity
					& Magnetism

PHYSICAL SCIENCE (+) (YR)

GRADE 9

This course is a study of physical science topics, including the properties of matter, the structure of matter, motion, work, energy and changes in matter, light, electric charges and currents, sound, and careers in science. Laboratory work is an integral part of the course, together with the development of study skills.

ACCELERATED PHYSICAL SCIENCE (+) (YR)

GRADE 9

This course is a comprehensive treatment of physical science topics, including the structure and properties of matter, changes in matter, motion, work and energy, heat, light, electric charges and currents, sound, and careers in science. Due to the emphasis on physics and problem solving, students electing to take this course should also be enrolled in Accelerated Algebra 1 or higher. Laboratory work is an integral part of the course, together with the development of study skills.

BIOLOGY (+) (YR) GRADES 10-11

This biology course covers most of the content areas in Accelerated Biology, but will be presented at a basic level of instruction. The core concepts will focus on the cell, genetics, evolution and ecology. Laboratory investigations will be an important part of the course and may include the dissection of an invertebrate and a vertebrate. In this course students will prepare for the Keystone Biology exam which they will take in the spring of that school year.

ACCELERATED BIOLOGY (+) (YR)

GRADES 10-11

This is a course which includes studies in cell biology, genetics, classification, microbiology, plants, animals, human biology, and ecology. Laboratory investigations will be a major part of the course and may include the dissection of a fish, frog, and fetal pig, as well as selected invertebrate animals. Heavy emphasis will be placed on content. The content will be treated in depth and is recommended for the science oriented student.

This course is designed for tenth grade students who have satisfactorily completed accelerated science. In this course students will prepare for the Keystone Biology Exam which they will take in the spring of that school year.

HONORS BIOLOGY (+) (YR)

GRADE 9

This rigorous course is a comprehensive treatment of biological topics which include the cell, biomolecules, cell transport, photosynthesis, cellular respiration, protein synthesis, genetics, biotechnology, evolution, classification, microbiology and disease, plants, animal and human biology. Laboratory activities, including multiple dissections and gel electrophoresis, are an important aspect of the course. In addition, research reports are required in oral and written form. The course requires outside reading that necessitates the student's ability to comprehend a high level informational text.

In order to elect this course, ninth grade students must have an "A" in Academic Science 8 and/or an "A" or "B" in Honors Science 8 and their science teacher's recommendation. Historically those students enrolled in Accelerated Algebra 2 and/or Honors Algebra 2 while studying Honors Biology experience the greatest success.

For those students who wish to progress to Honors Chemistry after Honors Biology, it is important to note that Honors Chemistry emphasizes a quantitative approach; therefore a student should have completed Honors Algebra 2 with an "A" or "B" final average or Accelerated Algebra 2 with an "A" average demonstrating their readiness to apply these math skills to scientific analysis. In this course students will prepare for the Keystone Biology Exam which they will take in the spring of that school year.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT BIOLOGY (+) (YR) - STEM

GRADES 11-12

The Advanced Placement Biology course includes topics regularly covered in a college biology course for science majors. Advanced Placement Biology differs significantly from the usual first high school course in biology with respect to the kind of textbook used, the range and depth of topics covered, the type of laboratory work done by the students, and the time and effort required of students.

Advanced Placement Biology is structured around the four Big Ideas of: Evolution and Diversity amongst living organisms, Cellular Processes and Energy transfer Genetics and Information Transfer and the interactions of biological systems. Student proficiency is assessed through the required laboratory work and examinations constructed according to the College Board guidelines. Honors Biology or accelerated Biology

and Honors Chemistry or Accelerated chemistry are the required prerequisites. Students are encouraged to take the advanced Placement examination in May. Summer assignments are required.

CHEMISTRY (+) (YR) GRADES 10-12

This introductory course is structured to provide students with a basic understanding of chemistry, and some of its applications in society. Topics include atomic structure, the periodic table, chemical bonding, chemical formulas and equations and the nature of solutions. The use and application of chemistry knowledge in laboratory investigations is an important part of learning in this course, and critical thinking is emphasized. Successful completion of Algebra 1 is essential for success as graphing and fundamental algebraic problem solving is often utilized. Formal reporting of selected experiments and practical applications are required. Successful completion of this course does not qualify the student for any advanced chemistry course.

ACCELERATED CHEMISTRY (+) (YR)

GRADES 10-12

Topics include atomic theories, the periodic table, chemical bonding, chemical formulas and equations, and the nature of solutions, acids and bases. Class time is generally devoted to lecture, problem solving, and laboratory exercises. Reading of the textbook, laboratory data interpretation, and worksheet problems are assigned as out of class activities.

The major goal of this course is to prepare the student for college chemistry. Because of the quantitative nature of chemistry, it is assumed that students who elect this course have a solid mathematical background in the areas of fundamental arithmetic operations, ratio and proportion, and solving linear equations. Students who elect Accelerated Chemistry should have successfully completed Accelerated Algebra 1.

HONORS CHEMISTRY (+) (YR)

GRADES 10-12

The course covers topics including atomic theory, the periodic table, chemical bonding, kinetic molecular theory, stoichiometry, chemical kinetics, solution chemistry, electrochemistry, and equilibrium.

Honors chemistry is intended to provide the concepts necessary for students who are interested in pursuing future studies in the physical sciences, engineering, and teaching of science, medicine, or research. Honors Chemistry emphasizes a quantitative approach: therefore, a student should have completed Honors Algebra 2 with an "A" or "B" final average or Accelerated Algebra 2 with an "A" final average demonstrating their readiness to apply these math skills to scientific analysis.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT CHEMISTRY (+) (YR) - STEM

GRADES 11-12

In this course the topics covered in Honors Chemistry are reviewed and expanded upon, particularly in the areas of equilibrium, thermodynamics, and kinetics. Concepts in nuclear and organic chemistry are introduced. Major emphasis is placed on more complex problem solving, critical thinking, and development of laboratory skills. This course is a college level chemistry course for students who plan to take the Advanced Placement Examination in May. To elect this course, a student should have completed Honors Chemistry with a minimum final grade of "B" or Accelerated Chemistry with a minimum final grade of "A". Students are encouraged to take the Advanced Placement examination in May. Summer assignments are required.

PHYSICS (+) (YR) - STEM

GRADES 11-12

Topics to be considered in this course include light, sound, and wave motion; vector kinematics and dynamics; work, and energy; electricity and magnetism.

This course is for students who are contemplating a two-year associate degree in technology, nursing, or a full four-year degree as a non-science major. It is recommended that the student who elects this course will have completed Algebra 1, or its equivalent, with a minimum grade of "C." Successful completion of this course does not qualify the student for any advanced physics course.

ACCELERATED PHYSICS (+) (YR) - STEM

GRADES 11-12

The major goal of this course is to prepare the student for college physics. To elect these course students should have successfully completed Accelerated Algebra 2. Topics include mechanics, optics, electricity, magnetism, light, and wave motion.

Class time is generally devoted to lecture, problem solving, and laboratory exercises. Reading of the textbook, problem solving and laboratory data interpretation are assigned as out of class activities.

HONORS PHYSICS (+) (YR) - STEM

GRADES 11-12

This course is intended to provide fundamental physics concepts for students interested in physical sciences, engineering, and teaching of science, medicine or research. The topics covered include mechanics, optics, electricity, magnetism, light, and wave motion.

Students should have successfully completed Honors Algebra 2 and Honors Geometry and should currently be enrolled in Honors Analysis, as there is emphasis on the quantitative analysis of physical phenomena.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT PHYSICS C: MECHANICS (+) (YR) – STEM

GRADE 12

This course is a university level first semester physics course taught with calculus. The necessary calculus will be taught as part of the course; therefore, students do not need calculus as a prerequisite to elect this course. However, they should also elect calculus in order to satisfy university prerequisites for advanced placement in physics.

The topics covered include mechanics and statics. To elect this course students should have successfully completed Accelerated Physics or Honors Physics. Students are encouraged to take the Advanced Placement examination in May.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT PHYSICS C: MECHANICS & ELECTRICITY GRADE 12 &MAGNETISM (+) (YR)—STEM

This course is a university level first-year (two semesters) physics course taught with calculus. The necessary calculus will be taught as part of the course; therefore, students do not need calculus as a prerequisite to elect this course. However, they should also elect calculus in order to satisfy university prerequisites for advanced placement in physics.

The topics covered are mechanics, electricity, and magnetism. To elect this course students should have successfully completed Accelerated Physics or Honors Physics. Students are encouraged to take the Advanced Placement examination in May.

ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE (+) (YR)

GRADES 11-12

Environmental science is an activity-based course designed to help students understand the interactions between the different elements of the environment. The course will also make the students aware of environmental problems on both local and global levels. The activities will include conventional laboratory exercises, workbook exercises, and projects. Several activities will be performed outdoors on the school grounds.

The course will deal with environmental history, science systems, biodiversity, biogeography, ecology, population dynamics, use of resources, types of pollution and the disposal of waste.

Due to the fact that environmental science is an integrated science, students must have satisfactorily completed a biology course. Students are more successful in this course if they are simultaneously enrolled in a chemistry course. Students will be evaluated through the use of examinations, lab work, lab behavior, written lab reports, and projects.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE (+) (YR) - STEM GRADES 11-12

The Advanced Placement Environmental Science course provides students with the scientific principles, concepts, and methodologies required to understand the interrelationships of the natural world, to identify and analyze environmental problems both natural and human-made, to evaluate the relative risks associated with these problems.

Students should have successfully completed Accelerated Chemistry, Accelerated Biology and Accelerated Algebra I with at least a B. Students are encouraged to take the Advanced Placement examination in May. Summer assignments are required.

ACCELERATED BEHAVIORAL SCIENCE-EXPERIMENTAL PSYCHOLOGY (+) (YR) GRADES 11-12

This is a laboratory course dealing with the study of human and animal behavior. Its focus is to acquaint the student with the concepts and methods of laboratory science as they apply to psychology. The topics covered are animal behavior, sensory processes, human behavior and the human nervous system.

This course is concerned with the study of perception, sensation, learning, memory, problem solving and physiological aspects of the nervous system. The anatomy and function of the nervous system will be covered in detail, and sensitive topics relating to reproductive behavior will be explored. Dissection of the eye and brain of a sheep is included, as well as several research assignments.

Students enrolled in Behavioral Science must have successfully completed a biology course. Students should also have a basic understanding of chemistry. Because of the use of living materials, students should be mature and be able to work effectively in a group or independently.

ACCELERATED MICROBIOLOGY (+) (YR) - STEM

GRADES 11-12

Microbiology is designed as a course for students interested in health, medicine and biotechnology careers. There is extensive laboratory work and independent research is involved. The content of the course centers on the culturing and observation of such organisms as bacteria, protozoans, algae, fungi, and viruses. In the latter part of the course, extensive work is done on DNA analysis, gene manipulation, and gene transfer.

Prospective students should already have successfully completed a first year course in Accelerated or Honors Biology, plus either have successfully completed or be presently enrolled in Accelerated or Honors Chemistry.

HONORS HUMAN ANATOMY AND PHYSIOLOGY (+) (YR)

GRADES 11-12

This course is designed to provide students with an in depth background in human anatomy (structure) and physiology (function). It is strongly recommended for students who have an interest in medicine, nursing, or other health careers. Emphasis is placed on skeletal, muscular, nervous, endocrine, digestive, respiratory, reproductive, cardiovascular, and urinary and immune systems.

Laboratory work includes studies of tissue, blood and urine. Dissections, which are a critical aspect of the course, include sheep organs (brain, eye, heart); and a rat and a cat for comparative anatomy studies. Reports, model building, and speakers are also included. The course requires outside reading that necessitates the student's ability to comprehend a high level informational text.

Students must be able to work well in a supervised lab. To elect this course, students must have completed Accelerated Biology or Honors Biology, and should have completed Accelerated Chemistry or Honors Chemistry.

ASTRONOMY (+) (S) - STEM

GRADES 10-12

This course uses NASA resources to explore the history of worldwide space programs, the International Space Station, and efforts for a mission to Mars. Topics will also include information you need to identify obvious stars and constellations. Students will learn how stars "live and die," unusual astronomical events (variable stars, quasars, black holes, etc.), formation of stars, the solar system and galaxies, movements of and distances to stars

and galaxies, and some of the tools and techniques astronomers use to learn about the universe. To elect this course the student should have some knowledge of chemistry.

METEOROLOGY (+) (S) - STEM

GRADES 10-12

This course introduces the basic concepts of meteorology in a hands-on, interactive format. The nature of the physical processes responsible for changes in daily weather will be discussed. Computer based exercises during classes will use current and recent weather data to investigate phenomena. Students will be provided with a first look at various aspects of meteorology, including solar radiation, global circulation, winds, stability, precipitation processes, weather systems, and severe weather. Basic physical principles behind the weather, terminology and weather analysis and prediction will be explored. To elect this course the student should have some knowledge of chemistry.

ANIMAL SCIENCE (+) (S) (Fall)

GRADES 11–12

Animal Science is a semester course which focuses on animal studies. Students must have successfully completed one year of Biology. Independent study, projects, and small group activity are essential parts of the course. Therefore, students are expected to exercise a sense of responsibility and self-discipline. All students must be willing to raise and care for the animals that are part of the course. Animal Science will cover care, management, breeding, behavior, disease, reproduction and daily data collection of common household pets/laboratory animals. The course will cover the purpose of laboratory animals and how they relate to the benefit of humans. Students will learn about the indigenous animals (fish, amphibians, reptiles, birds and mammals) in Pennsylvania which include identification, characteristics, adaptations and life cycles.

PLANT SCIENCE (+) (S) (Spring)

GRADES 11-12

Plant Science is a semester course, which focuses on the methods of greenhouse gardening. Students must have successfully completed one year of Biology. Independent study and small group activity are essential parts of this course. Therefore, students are expected to exercise a sense of responsibility and self-discipline. All students must be willing to maintain and care for the plants in the greenhouse. Greenhouse gardening will cover growing plants from seed, propagation of plants, watering, fertilizing, potting, pruning, lighting, soil mixtures, plant pests and diseases. Laboratory work involved with the topics mentioned is also part of this course.

ACCELERATED FORENSIC SCIENCE I and II (+) (S) (YR) - STEM GRADES 11-12

This course is an interdisciplinary class involving biology, anatomy, chemistry, physics, and earth science with an emphasis in complex reasoning and critical thinking. In addition, students must incorporate use of technology, communication skills, language arts, art, mathematics, and social studies.

A large percentage of class time is spent in the lab. Students will be expected to spend a considerable amount of time on reading and writing assignments outside of class. Each semester is independent. Students have the option of taking one or both semesters.

Forensic Science 1 topics include introduction to forensics (observations, forensic history, careers, crime scene investigations), physical evidence (glass, sand, soil), DNA, documentation (handwriting, paper and ink analysis, fraud), and biology (osteology, odontology, archeology, botany, and entomology).

Forensic Science 2 topics include introduction to forensics, prints, toxicology (drugs, alcohol), trace evidence (hair, fiber), and serology (blood typing, genetics, characteristics and differentiations, spatter patterns).

Students must have satisfactorily completed Accelerated Biology and Accelerated Chemistry with a grade of C or higher in both classes, or Biology and Chemistry with a grade of A average in both classes.

HONORS EXPERIMENTAL RESEARCH IN STEM (YR) - STEM

GRADE 12*

The goal of this course is to provide students an opportunity to develop 21st Century Skills in STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Math) through the investigation of a student-selected scientific topic. This will be an intensive scientific research project designed and implemented by the student. This course covers topics such as how to formulate a problem for scientific research, lab safety, laboratory techniques, experimental design/planning, statistical analysis, technical reading and writing along with scientific communication. Students may choose a research topic in areas such as: Biochemistry, Physics, Behavioral Science or Earth and Space Science. Efforts will be made to partner with a mentor from the scientific community.

Students will be required to communicate the results of their research, whether an in class presentation, a research paper, a journal article or participation in a science fair.

Due to the individual nature of this course, students must be able to work independently and be highly motivated. It is required that students have had successful completion in Honors Biology and Honors Chemistry, and with at least a B. Students must have completed or be concurrently enrolled in Honors Physics. Students must concurrently be enrolled in another Honors or AP science course, as well as be enrolled in an AP math course. *Juniors that meet the above requirements may enroll in this course.

SOCIAL SCIENCE



Beyond the attainment of three credits (2 American, 1 World) to satisfy the social studies requirement for graduation, additional courses taken in this department satisfy the arts and humanities or free elective requirements for graduation.

For students eligible for special education services, the selection of appropriate academic and elective classes will be determined by the IEP team.

SOCIAL SCIENCE COURSES					
Accepta	ble for Fulfilling Social Science Requ	uirement			
GRADE 9	GRADE 10	GRADE 11			
Literacy Studies in American	Literacy Studies in American	Literacy Studies in World			
History 9	History 10	History			
American Civilization 9	American Civilization 10	World History			
Honors American Civilization 9	Honors American Civilization 10	Honors World History			
Honors American Studies 1 (Gifted Program)	Honors American Studies 2 (Gifted Program)	Honors Modern World History (Gifted Program)			
	AP United States History	AP European History			
		AP World History			

SOCIAL SCIENCE ELECTIVES					
Accelerated Psychology	AP World History	Honors Economic	Introduction to		
		Theory	Psychology		
AP European History	Introduction to				
	Economics	Honors Philosophy	Introduction to		
*AP Psychology		(Gifted Program)	Sociology		
(pathway to a STEM	Current Issues				
career after high		Honors United States	Gender Studies		
school)	AP United States	Government			
	History				

PROGRESSION FLOW CHART

GRADE	PROGRESSION	GRADE	PROGRESSION	GRADE	PROGRESSION	GRADE
8		9		10		11
				AP		AP
				United		World
			4	States	-	or
			1		1	European
			11		11	
Gifted		Honors	11	Honors	11	Honors
Social		American	1 1	American	1 1	Modern
Studies 8		Studies I	<i>i</i>	Studies II	<i>i</i>	World
		(gifted)	/	(gifted)	/	History
			1		/	(gifted)
l			/		/	
Honors		Honors	/	Honors	/	Honors
Social Studies 8		American	i	American	i	World
Studies 8	-	Civilization 9	-	Civilization 10	-	History
	#	9	*	10	*	
	1					
	1	American		American		World
Academic		Civilization		Civilization		History
Social	1	9	/	10	/	·
Studies 8						
	 ``\ .	Literacy		Literacy		Literacy
	`	Studies in		Studies in		Studies in
		American		American		World
		History 9		History 10		History
	l B					
Like	Likely Progression Possible Progression				on	

LITERACY STUDIES IN AMERICAN HISTORY 9 (+) (YR)

GRADE 9

This course surveys the American History from the Reconstruction to the end of World War II. Key events of this period are examined via analysis of primary source documents and secondary sources. Students are challenged to demonstrate understanding with informal written reflections and formal structured essays. Further, this course will apply use of mastery learning; team teachers will check on student progress throughout each unit. These checks on learning progress will provide feedback on individual learning and will be used to devise differentiation activities.

AMERICAN CIVILIZATION 9 (+) (YR)

GRADE 9

The period of American History, Reconstruction through WWII, is used as the vehicle for the teaching of various disciplines with the social sciences. An emphasis is placed on economics, civics, and government as well as geography. Outside assignments are required. Content and skills of the course are designed to enable students to demonstrate an understanding of chronological development and historical comprehension. This program continues to develop research skills.

HONORS AMERICAN CIVILIZATION 9 (+) (YR)

GRADE 9

The period of American History, Reconstruction through WWII, is used as the vehicle for the teaching of various disciplines with the social sciences. An emphasis is placed on economics, geography, civics, and government. Content and skills of the course are designed to enable students to demonstrate an understanding of chronological development and historical comprehension. The expectations of student work are high. Outside readings and research are used in addition to the text. The students are asked to articulate issue and ideas orally as well as in writing. There is an emphasis on the development of higher level thinking skills.

LITERACY STUDIES IN AMERICAN HISTORY 10 (+) (YR)

GRADE 10

This course surveys the American History from the end of World War II to the present. Key events of this period are examined via analysis of primary source documents and secondary sources. Students are challenged to demonstrate understanding with informal written reflections and formal structured essays. Further, this course will apply use of mastery learning; team teachers will check on student progress throughout each unit. These checks on learning progress will provide feedback on individual learning and will be used to devise differentiation activities.

AMERICAN CIVILIZATION 10 (+) (YR)

GRADE 10

This full year course teaches the period of American History from post WWII foreign policy to the present. The course begins with the home front after WWII and finishes with an emphasis on our recent decades. There is an emphasis on economic and political principles with the intention of helping the students become good citizens and consumers of the 21st century. Content and skills of the course are designed to enable students to demonstrate an understanding of chronological development and historical comprehension. The course is organized on the basis of the teacher developed essential questions.

HONORS AMERICAN CIVILIZATION 10 (+) (YR)

GRADE 10

This full year course begins with the teaching of post WWII foreign policy and finishes with an emphasis on our recent decades. There is an importance placed on the study of economic and political principles with the intention of preparing the students as consumers and citizens of the globalized 21st century. This course is designed for the student who has shown significant success in his or her previous social studies class. The expectations of student work are high. Outside readings and research are used in addition to the text. Content and skills of the course are designed to enable students to demonstrate an understanding of chronological development and historical comprehension. The students are asked to articulate issues and ideas orally as well as in writing. There is an emphasis on the development of higher level thinking skills. The course is organized on the basis of the teacher developed essential questions.

LITERACY STUDIES IN WORLD HISTORY (+) (YR)

GRADE 11

This course surveys the history and geography of Africa, Europe, India, Japan, China, Latin America, and the Middle East. Key events of these cultures are examined via analysis of primary source documents and secondary sources. Students are challenged to demonstrate understanding with informal written reflections and formal structured essays. Further, this course will apply use of mastery learning; team teachers will check on student progress throughout each unit. These checks on learning progress will provide feedback on individual learning and will be used to devise differentiation activities.

WORLD HISTORY (+) (YR)

GRADE 11

This course is designed to understand our world and our place in it through the study of world history. Through this course of study the interrelationship of the countries/regions and their interdependence is emphasized. A focus is placed on social, economic, political development of different societies as well as the study of geography. The course is organized on the basis of the teacher developed essential questions. How have

people built their diverse cultures over time? How are societies interconnected across time and space and how do primary sources and other historical data assist the historian's understanding of issues of interconnectedness? How have different economic systems developed to address changing human needs and influenced the world? How have geographic factors affected the course of history? How do current issues of today relate to the developing of future trends? How do societies govern themselves? Content and skills of the course are designed to enable students to demonstrate an understanding of chronological development and historical comprehension. This program continues to address the research and writing skills necessary to develop, critical, analytical, spatial and interpretive thinking skills.

HONORS WORLD HISTORY (+) (YR)

GRADE 11

This course is designed to provide students an opportunity to understand our world and our place in it through the study of cultural relativity, multiple perspectives, and historical development. Through this course of study, the interrelationship of the countries/regions and their dependence on one another are emphasized. An emphasis is placed on social, economic, and political development of different societies, as well as geography. Content and skills of the course are designed to enable students to demonstrate an understanding of chronological development and historical comprehension. Critical and spatial thinking is developed through the use of analytical and interpretive skills.

This program continues to develop research skills. The course requirements include outside readings, and research. The students are asked to articulate issues and ideas orally as well as in writing.

THE FOLLOWING ARE ELECTIVE COURSES

INTRODUCTION TO ECONOMICS (S)

GRADES 10-12

This course is designed to reinforce student understanding of economic concepts and theories. This elective brings the student closer to the economic world through practical application and theoretical support. Throughout the semester students will gain an understanding of the following key economic principles through the study of banking, credit, decision-making, taxation, budgets, markets, and economic systems. The course is based on the following essential leanings. Limited resources and unlimited wants require choices by individuals, groups and nations and these choices impact others locally, regionally and around the globe. The interaction of buyers and sellers in markets determines prices and quantities exchanged. Governmental policies influence decision-making. Individuals and groups strive to obtain goods and services and accumulate wealth.

CURRENT ISSUES (S) (+) (AD)

GRADES 10-12

This semester elective course uses current events as the standard to teach Social Studies skills. Economic, social and political concepts are learned through the events of the student's life. Current newspapers, magazines, and web sites are the sources of information for Current Issues.

HONORS ECONOMIC THEORY (+) (S)

GRADES 10-12

This course is designed for the student who wants to become more informed about our economy and economic decision made at the individual, corporate and governmental levels. This course will increase the student's awareness of economics which will include an exposure to the basic theories and terminology integrated through both micro and macroeconomics. Skills developed in this course include graph interpretation and simple mathematical relationships. Students will be expected to complete a variety of assignments to apply their understanding of economics to actual current economic issues.

HONORS U.S. GOVERNMENT AND POLITICS (+) (S)

GRADES 10-12

This course emphasizes the importance of economic, social, and political awareness in shaping history and the future. Students will acquire the basic elements of citizenship skills for participating in public affairs and understanding the premises of American liberty.

INTRODUCTION TO PSYCHOLOGY (+) (S)

GRADES 10-12

Introduction to Psychology is designed as a survey course to familiarize students with fundamental psychological concepts. The focus will be on the variety of factors which contribute to individual differences in personality, intelligence and character.

ACCELERATED PSYCHOLOGY (+) (YR) (V)

GRADES 10-12

This course is designed for the student interested in the academic study of the basic principles of human behavior and mental processes. Students will examine issues such as the influence of biology on behavior, learning, memory, human development, intelligence, personality formation and mental illness. The students will examine and conduct research as it is applied to these topics.

INTRODUCTION TO SOCIOLOGY (+) (S)

GRADES 10-12

Sociology is the study of group life-its characteristics, causes, and consequences. This introductory course will examine and analyze how social structures are created, maintained and most importantly, how they affect behavior. Students will be able to use the three main sociological perspectives to investigate social issues such as: socialization, culture, race and ethnic relations, education, poverty, and aging.

GENDER STUDIES (+) (S) (AD)

GRADES 11-12

This course will focus on the way gender shapes individuals, social institutions and culture throughout history. It places an emphasis on the relationship between the social construction of gender and the experiences of women and men throughout societies. Students will study topics such as "male" and "female" gender expectations in the home, workplace, and government as well as how concepts of gender are reflected in a society's media, religion, interpersonal relations and individual rights. Students will use an interdisciplinary approach and examine such concepts through the use of primary source documents, literature, film, current event articles, and music. The goal of this course is to help students develop a critical framework for thinking about gender through a global perspective and allow the opportunity for self-reflection throughout.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT EUROPEAN HISTORY (+) (YR)

GRADES 11-12

This course is designed to be the equivalent of a college introductory course on this subject. The course will cover major events and themes of European political, diplomatic, intellectual, cultural, social and economic history. Critical analysis and essay writing skills will be stressed. College level texts and other reading materials will be required. Students will be encouraged to take the Advanced Placement European History examination available through the College Board. This course fulfills the eleventh grade social studies graduation requirement.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT PSYCHOLOGY (+) (YR) - STEM

GRADES 10-12

The Advanced Placement Psychology course is designed to introduce students to the systematic and scientific study of behavior and mental processes of humans and other animals. Students will be exposed to psychological facts and principles associated with the major subfields of psychology. They will learn the methods that psychologists use in conducting and reporting on research.

This challenging course will be presented as an entry-level college course in psychology. Students will be encouraged to take the Advanced Placement examination available through the College Board. This course incorporates STEM principles to build a foundation for STEM-related fields.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT UNITED STATES HISTORY (+) (YR)

GRADES 10-12

The program is designed to provide the student with the analytic skills and factual knowledge to deal critically with the problems and issues in United States History. This rigorous course will emphasize class discussion of work assigned from a survey textbook and supplementary readings taken from both primary and secondary sources. Extensive reading and written assignments will be given each marking period. Tests and quizzes - both essay and objective - will occur regularly. Due to the demands of this course, it is recommended that the candidate have previously completed an honors or gifted program in social studies and receive a recommendation from the present social studies teacher.

Students will be encouraged to take the Advanced Placement U.S. History examination available through the College Board. This course fulfills the tenth grade social studies graduation requirement.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT WORLD HISTORY (+) (YR)

GRADES 11-12

The Advanced Placement World History course is designed to view human society in a global perspective with the emphasis on the period 600 C.E. to the present. The five overarching themes of this course match those of the College Board Advanced Placement World History examination. Course content will include current trends in historical approach and recent articles in world history research.

The purpose of the course is to give students a global perspective on human history with an emphasis on the skill development of critical thinking and writing.

This is a rigorous course requiring outside reading, essay writing and class participation. Students should receive a recommendation from their present social studies teacher.

Students will be encouraged to take the Advanced Placement World History examination available through the College Board. This course fulfills the eleventh grade social studies graduation requirement.

GIFTED PROGRAMS



HONORS AMERICAN STUDIES 1 (+) (YR)

GRADE 9

This full-year course uses the period of American history from Reconstruction through World War II as the vehicle for teaching various disciplines of social sciences. An emphasis is placed on economics, geography, civics, and government. Attention is given to an interdisciplinary approach when examining the various topics.

A high degree of motivation and commitment are needed for success in this course. Content and skills are designed to enable the students to demonstrate an understanding of chronological development, and historical and comprehension skills. Critical and spatial thinking is developed through the use of analytical and interpretive skills. The program continues to develop research skills.

The course requirements include nightly homework, outside readings, and research. The students are asked to articulate issues and ideas orally as well as in writing. A variety of texts, primary sources and secondary readings are used as a basis for studying curriculum areas, Students are expected to develop critical approaches to historical and human problems.

HONORS AMERICAN STUDIES 2 (+) (YR)

GRADE 10

The period of American History from post WWII to the present day is emphasized. The course begins with home front after WWII and finishes with an emphasis on our recent decades. There is an emphasis on economic and political principles with the intention of preparing the student as consumer and citizen of the globalized 21st century. Major emphasis will be placed on the use of primary and secondary source materials. Students will be expected to read numerous articles and apply their analytical skills to comprehend the content. In addition, a significant amount of writing will also occur. Students are expected to become highly involved in class participation activities which include daily discussions, role play activities, and simulations. A heavy emphasis will be placed on enhancing higher order thinking skills such as analysis, synthesis, and evaluation of information. Students will also be encouraged to develop their creativity and individuality through various projects and group activities.

HONORS MODERN WORLD HISTORY (+) (YR)

GRADE 11/12

This course is designed to challenge the intellect and develop GIEP skills, while presenting themes and interpretations in modern world history. The periods and themes covered are: areas of contact and isolation (1300-1600), global interactions and impact (1600-1750), technology and ideology restructure the world (1750-1914), and mass culture, war and ideological confrontations, and increasing globalization (1914-present).

Students use a broad chronological framework to organize historical events. Emphasis is on understanding human social connections and interactions, while also appreciating local differences and adaptation. Critical thinking will be emphasized though the examination of point of view and historiography. The use of primary sources is an integral part of the course.

HONORS PHILOSOPHY (+) (YR)

GRADE 11/12

The course is a pragmatic overview of the six major aspects of philosophic study. The primary emphasis is for students to develop from a philosophic perspective view of life and the world that allows them to be successful in their future endeavors. In this introductory course, student will manipulate abstract ideas to provide a means of dealing with varying points of view in an orderly, logical, and rational way. The ideas from original works by a number of philosophers will be read and studied in a small group seminar format to attempt to view the philosopher at work. Summer reading is required.

TECHNOLOGY EDUCATION



Courses in this department satisfy the Arts and Humanities or free elective requirements for graduation. **All courses below incorporate STEM principles to build a foundation for STEM-related fields.

Technology Education Elective Sequences

	(COMM	UNICATIONS TECHNO	DLOGY		
Graphic Arts 1* (AD) (S) (YR)	Online Media 1* (Formerly Web Page Design) (AD)		Accelerated Publication Design 1 (Yearbook) (AD)	Digital Photography & Illustration* (AD)		Photography 1* (AD) (S) (YR)
Accelerated	Accelerated On	line	Accelerated		elerated	Accelerated
Graphic Arts 2* (AD) (YR)	Media 2* (Formerly Multim	adia)	Publication Design 2 (Yearbook)		graphy 2* D (YR)	Photography 2* (AD (YR)
(AD) (1K)	(AD)	ieura)	(AD)	(A)	D (1K)	(AD (TK)
Drafting & Design Engineering 1* (AD) (S) (YR) Accelerated Drafting & Design Engineering 2* (AD) (YR)		Honors Architectural Design & Engineering* (YR)		Architectural Design & Engineering* (AD)(S)		
	POWER TECH	NOLO	GY		ELECTRON	ICS TECHNOLOGY
Energy, Power, & Transportation 1 * (AD) (S) (YR) Accelerated Energy, Power, & Transportation 2* (AD) (YR)			Know Your Car* (S) (AD)		Electronics 1* (AD) (S) (YR)	
MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY						
Woodworking Technology 1* (S) (AD) (YR)			Engineering & Robotics* (S) (AD)		Honors En	gineering & Robotics* (YR)

Independent Study Courses in Technology Education (AD)(YR)

Accelerated Woodworking Technology 2 *(AD) (YR)

For students eligible for special education services, the selection of appropriate academic and elective classes will be determined by the IEP team.

Materials that are used in completing assignments and become the personal property of the students are to be paid for by the students. Lab fees vary according to course projects.

LEVEL 1 COURSES - These courses provide an exploration of course-specific content, and are offered on an alternate day or semester (previously termed Introduction level courses) or full year (previously termed Essentials level courses) basis.

ACCELERATED LEVEL 2 COURSES These advanced level courses provide a rigorous study of course-specific content beyond the material addressed in Level 1 courses, and are offered on a full year basis or alternate day. **Pre-requisites for any Accelerated Level 2 course**: Successful completion of the Level 1 course (C or above) or the permission of the instructor. These courses may fulfill the school district requirement for the graduation project.

HONORS COURSES - Honors level courses are the most rigorous courses offered in the department. Students desiring to take any Honors level course are expected to meet the prerequisites listed in the individual course descriptions.

INDEPENDENT STUDY COURSES - Rigorous study of course-specific content beyond the material addressed in an advanced/honors course offered on a full year basis. Pre-requisites: Successful completion of an advanced/honors course.

DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY

DRAFTING & DESIGN ENGINEERING 1 (AD) (S) (YR) - STEM

GRADES 9-12

This STEM based course is highly recommended for students considering careers in any field of engineering. The following areas will be explored during this year-long course: sketching, use of mechanical drawing instruments, orthographic and isometric drawing, sectioning, revolutions, auxiliary views, fasteners, pictorial and working drawings, surface developments, and modeling. Students will develop fundamental skills through board work and the use of a Computer Aided Drafting and Design (CADD) program.

ACCELERATED DRAFTING & DESIGN ENGINEERING 2 (AD) (YR) - STEM GRADES 10-12

This STEM based course is designed for students who wish to explore advanced problems dealing with machine parts and accessories, sheet metal pattern development, mechanical perspective drawings, and other forms of three dimensional drawings. Emphasis will be placed on understanding two and three dimensional forms through standard board practices and through the use of the computer (CADD). The student enrolling in this course should have successfully completed Drafting and Design Engineering 1 or have the permission of instructor.

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN & ENGINEERING (AD) (S) - STEM GRADES 9-12

A course for students interested in exploring structural design and/or engineering. Architectural plans will be created utilizing Computer Aided Drafting and Design (CADD) and Board Drawings. This STEM based course focuses on the design of spaces, incorporating ergonomics, environmental impact studies, green living, and other technologies impacting human life. Students will be expected to utilize problem solving skills in a design loop to create solutions for real-world problems.

HONORS ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN & ENGINEERING (YR) - STEM

GRADES 10-12

This STEM based course is highly recommended for students wishing to explore careers in architecture and related fields. During this year-long course students will study basic structural planning, design, and construction. Class time will be devoted to problem solving, creating architectural plans and construction of models. An introduction to Computer Aided Drafting and Design (CADD) will be presented. Students enrolling in this course must have successfully completed or be enrolled in a course of Algebra 2, Geometry, and Physics.

POWER TECHNOLOGY

KNOW YOUR CAR (S) (AD)

GRADES 9-12

Students who plan to own a car will benefit from this course. Dealing with the automotive field, this consumer oriented course will offer students individual work sessions, outside demonstrations, and lab lectures. Topics included are automotive care and cosmetics, principles of operation, consumer awareness, safety, and buying new and used cars.

ENERGY, POWER, and TRANSPORTATION 1 (AD) (YR) – STEM

GRADES 9-12

A course for students interested in exploring various forms of energy, power, and transportation. This STEM based course will expose students to the production and use of energy to power a variety of vehicles and systems. Students will utilize problem solving skills to create projects to provide solutions for real-world problems.

ACCELERATED ENERGY, POWER, and TRANSPORTATION 2 (AD) (YR)--STEM GRADES 10-12

The student, upon learning the basics in the Level 1 course, will have the opportunity to become familiar with more in-depth principles of operations and systems. The student will actively apply these principles through problem-solving design activities throughout the course. Pre-requisite: Energy & Power Technology 1.

ELECTRONICS TECHNOLOGY

ELECTRONICS 1 (AD) (S) (YR) - STEM

GRADES 9-12

This Stem based course provides an opportunity for students to gain fundamental knowledge of electronics and applied scientific principles, as well as general safety practices for laboratory environments. Areas of study will include: atomic theory; current, resistance, voltage and power; circuit analysis; Ohm's Law; Kirchhoff's laws; digital theory. Students will be expected to utilize lab equipment and computer simulators to design, build and analyze analog and digital circuitry. The course will be taught in both a classroom and experiential environment with experiments and projects complementing traditional learning.

MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY

WOODWORKING TECHNOLOGY 1 (AD) (S) (YR)

GRADES 9-12

A course for students interested in hands-on work and product design. This course challenges students with the use of power and hand tools in the creation of projects that will increase in complexity as students learn advanced techniques. Safe operation and use of tools and equipment in the lab is stressed throughout the course. Some areas of this course include STEM concepts.

ACCELERATED WOODWORKING TECHNOLOGY 2 (AD) (YR)

GRADES 10-12

This course is designed to continue students experience with tools, materials, machines and technology used in woodworking. Projects will increase in complexity from the first level classes. Students will continue to

refine and explore gluing techniques, use of jigs, fixtures and templates, wood turning, wood joinery, layout and measurement, board foot calculations, use of fasteners, sanding and finishing techniques. Experience in planning and designing woodworking activities, as well as the development of safe work habits, form integral parts of the instructional program. Some areas of this course include STEM concepts. Students enrolling in this course should have successfully completed Woodworking Technology 1, or have the permission of the instructor.

ENGINEERING and ROBOTICS (S) (AD) - STEM

GRADES 9-12

This STEM based course is for students to explore the rapidly expanding technologies of Computer Aided Drafting and Design (CADD), Computer Aided Manufacturing (CAM), 3-D Modeling, and Robotics. Students will use hardware, software, and computer applications to engineer, design and produce solutions to assigned problems. Students will gain experience in creating computer-aided drawings, controlling robotic systems, and manipulating manufacturing processes and control systems, both electronic and mechanical.

HONORS ENGINEERING and ROBOTICS (YR) - STEM

GRADES 11-12

This advanced STEM based course has been designed for highly motivated students who would like to explore CADD/CAM, 3-D Modeling, CNC, and Robotics. Students will use hardware, software and computer applications to engineer, design, and produce solutions to assigned problems. Students will gain detailed experience in creating CADD, controlling robotic systems, and manipulating manufacturing processes and control systems, both electronic and mechanical. This course is recommended for those students who are looking into the fields of electrical, mechanical, and computer engineering. Students enrolling in this course *must have successfully completed* or be enrolled in a course of Algebra 2, Geometry, and Physics. In addition, some background in programming is recommended.

COMMUNICATIONS TECHNOLOGY

DIGITAL PHOTOGRAPHY & ILLUSTRATION (AD) - STEM

GRADES 9-12

This STEM based course will develop and broaden the student's computer skills through real world design problems. Students will explore the principles of both digital photography and digital illustration and apply them towards composition in order to enhance the overall published product. Design problems could include original images, image repair and retouching, image manipulation, etc... Images will be generated with a diverse system of hardware and software, such as computers, scanners, digital cameras, printers and more. Images will be created, edited, and stored through various software packages such as the Adobe Publishing Suite. The course will require students to synthesize ideas in order to create plausible and aesthetically pleasing solutions for real world problems through manipulation of computer based data. All teachers are encouraged to innovate in the classroom especially as it relates to new technology. The constant search for new techniques and projects helps generate the curriculum of the future. This may cause deviations in the current curriculum. Also, Technology Education facilities vary from building to building in our district. This may cause additional curricular differences.

GRAPHIC ARTS 1 (AD) (S) (YR) - STEM

GRADES 9-12

A course for students interested in exploring design and printing technologies. This STEM based course will expose students to the art of visual communication, from design to production. Students will engage in projects; i.e. screen printing t-shirts and vinyl cutting stickers, using professional design software and industry standard equipment. This is an excellent opportunity for Art students to explore industrial reproduction techniques and the artist's role in graphic reproduction.

ACCELERATED GRAPHIC ARTS 2 (AD) (YR) - STEM

GRADES 10-12

This second level STEM based course is for those students who wish to explore the various methods of graphic reproduction. The emphasis in this course will be on advanced photo-offset techniques such as halftone, duotone, reverses, screen tints, special effect screens, pasteurization, and color process printing. Also included will be multi-color techniques for design and layout, advanced press operation, and maintenance. The role of computers in pre-press imaging and copy preparation is an integral part of the course. The student enrolling in this course should have successfully completed Graphic Arts 1 or have the permission of the instructor.

PHOTOGRAPHY 1 (AD) (S) (YR) - STEM

GRADES 9-12

This STEM based course is designed for the student who wishes to explore black & white photography. Projects in the course may include studio work, action photography, mounting photographs, and photographic special effects. Students will perform laboratory activities for each assignment. Student performance is evaluated by testing and laboratory performance on assignments.

ACCELERATED PHOTOGRAPHY 2 (AD) (YR) - STEM

GRADES 10-12

This second level STEM based course is designed for the serious student who wishes to pursue photography beyond the material covered in the Level 1 course. The course will cover advanced assignments including the following: portfolio of work, portraiture, photographic montage, photo research projects, and special camera and darkroom techniques. Coursework will consist mainly of laboratory activities, supplemented, as appropriate, by the instructor. Student performance will be evaluated by a variety of critique formats. It is highly recommended that students enrolling in this course have their own SLR film camera. The student enrolling in this course must have successfully completed Photography 1, Digital Photography, or have the permission of the instructor.

ONLINE MEDIA 1 (AD) - STEM

GRADES 9-12

This STEM based course is offered to students who wish to explore various uses of the Internet through the building of web pages and web sites. Students will gain experience in working with HTML code, web authoring software including Adobe's Dreamweaver, digital images, video, gif animations, and appropriate web design and layout.

ACCELERATED ONLINE MEDIA 2 (AD) - STEM

GRADES 10-12

This second level STEM based course is offered as a follow up to Online Media 1. Whereas the first level class concentrates solely on HTML as a language for web development, Online Media 2 takes HTML 5.0 and offers a rich developing environment for mobile devices such Android and iOS platforms. This course concentrates on the media applications of mobile devices through programs such as Adobe's Flash and the Corona Software Development kit. Programming languages will include Adobe's Action Script, advanced HTML 5.0, and Lua.

INDEPENDENT STUDY COURSE IN TECHNOLOGY EDUCATION (AD) (YR) GRADES 11-12

Students may elect an independent study course in an area of study in Technology Education such as Photography, Graphic Arts, Power, Wood, Engineering and Robotics, Electronics, and Drafting. Standard or Honors may be selected.

The independent study is designed as an offering above the second level course. Potential students must have successfully completed the lower level course as the prerequisite and have approval of the teacher prior to enrollment. The student will select unit of study in an area of their choice. Students will complete research, experiments, examples, and a presentation. If the honors independent study course is chosen, the class will be a yearlong course every day.

WORLD LANGUAGE



Courses in this department satisfy the arts and humanities or free elective requirements for graduation.

For students eligible for special education services, the selection of appropriate academic and elective classes will be determined by the IEP team.

The Council Rock World Language Department provides opportunities for students to reach various levels of proficiency in a second language. Research shows that students benefit academically from the study of a World Language while gaining a positive attitude about other cultures and languages. At Council Rock we offer classes in Latin, Spanish, German and French.

There are two series of study of a World Language at Council Rock. The natural articulation for the Honors series is: Level I, Honors Level II, Honors Level III, Honors Level IV, and AP Language. The non-Honors series for the same languages continues from Level I to Level II, Level III, and Level IV. It is possible that a student might move from the Honors series to the non-Honors series, or vice versa, depending on specific criteria defined by the World Language Department. The likely paths for course articulation are shown in the chart below.

The recommendation that a student pursue the study of one language through all five years is strongly supported by the World Language staff. Admissions boards of most colleges and universities support an ongoing sequence of language study. It is important to note that each of the four languages offered in the Council Rock schools is equally challenging, academically. The AP Language courses are intended to prepare students for advanced placement in upper-level college courses. Students in AP Language are encouraged to take the AP Language exam offered each May.

GRADE 9	GRADE 10	GRADE 11	GRADE 12
Latin 1	Latin 2 Honors	Latin 3 Honors	Latin 4 Honors
German 1*	German 2	German 3	German 4
French 1*	French 2	French 3	French 4
Spanish 1*	Spanish 2	Spanish 3	Spanish 4
German 2	German 3	German 4	
French 2	French 3	French 4	
Spanish 2	Spanish 3	Spanish 4	
German 2 Honors	German 3 Honors	German 4 Honors	AP German
French 2 Honors	French 3 Honors	French 4 Honors	AP French
Spanish 2 Honors	Spanish 3 Honors	Spanish 4 Honors	AP Spanish

^{*}Students taking Level 1 of a language in 9th grade can matriculate into Level 2 Honors the following year based on teacher recommendation.

FRENCH, LEVEL I (+) (YR) GERMAN, LEVEL I (+) (YR) SPANISH, LEVEL I (+) (YR)

Throughout Level One, a functional approach is used to emphasize communication skills in everyday life. Instruction focuses on situations such as greeting others, expressing emotions and opinions, and seeking information. Students are engaged in motivating activities that develop their ability to use the language authentically. Spoken and written exercises focus on self-expression.

The program depicts everyday life, such as family and peer relations, and social customs in the countries of the target language. A variety of activities, designed with an emphasis on using the language as well as learning, is based on common situations and help students to become proficient in the three modes of communication: interpretive, interpersonal and presentational.

LATIN, LEVEL I (+) (YR)

This course introduces students to the Latin language, its grammar, vocabulary, and English word derivation. Students are engaged in motivating activities that develop their ability to use the language. Reading for comprehension and opportunities for oral communication and writing are emphasized. Textbook chapters focus on reading selections, grammatical forms and exercises, mythological and historical characters, word study, derivatives, and Roman life. Students will also become aware of how Latin influences other curricula, such as mathematics, law, and philosophy. Students should expect to be assigned regular study tasks, which may include written and oral work. Individual and group projects are a significant part of the course.

FRENCH, LEVEL II (+) (YR) GERMAN, LEVEL II (+) (YR) SPANISH, LEVEL II (+) (YR)

Students enrolled in this course will have successfully completed Level One. This course will prepare students for the Level Three course, but it is not intended as preparation for the Honors Level Three course. Emphasis continues on fostering genuine communicative ability in both written and oral formats. A focus continues of self-expression through the continual re-entry of grammatical material. The student will gain greater cultural awareness of the language as the curriculum moves through diverse countries.

HONORS FRENCH, LEVEL II (+) (YR) HONORS GERMAN, LEVEL II (+) (YR) HONORS SPANISH, LEVEL II (+) (YR)

Students enrolled in this course must have demonstrated advanced levels of competency with material learned in Level I. It is a rigorous course which continues and expands the concepts previously presented through analysis, synthesis and evaluation of more advanced grammar and vocabulary. Students will do independent research, present projects for class use, contribute to class discussions in the target language, and complete assignments in a timely manner. Students are expected to respond freely and to be involved in spontaneous language exchanges. A focus continues on the cultural heritage and issues of countries of the target language. Students will continue to strive for proficiency in the interpretive, interpersonal and presentational modes of communication. Students will be assigned regular study tasks which will include oral and written work. Courses are conducted primarily in the target language.

HONORS LATIN, LEVEL II (+) (YR)

Honors Latin II continues the work of Latin I. More advanced grammar concepts and vocabulary allow the student to read selections describing in-depth Roman life, customs, and achievements that impact modern life. Roman history and mythology are studied through class presentations and discussion. Students are involved in independent research as well as group projects and activities which emphasize increasing oral and written

proficiency in the language. Reading for comprehension, critical thinking and writing continue to be emphasized, as does derivative study.

FRENCH, LEVEL III (+) (YR) GERMAN, LEVEL III (+) (YR) SPANISH, LEVEL III (+) (YR)

Most students enrolled in this course will have successfully completed Level Two.

In Level Three, the presentation of grammar is accompanied by short, theme-related readings and films. Activities are presented in various formats, from the more directed to the very open-ended, in order to motivate and challenge students. Students are provided the opportunity to personalize the material and to express their opinions in an enjoyable way. Assignments, oral and written, continue on a regular basis. Communication in the target language is highly encouraged.

HONORS FRENCH, LEVEL III (+) (YR) HONORS GERMAN, LEVEL III (+) (YR) HONORS SPANISH, LEVEL III (+) (YR)

This course may be recommended for students who have completed Honors Level II with an "A" or a strong "B". In Honors Level Three, the primary goal is to help students develop greater proficiency in the target language. It also aims to increase the student's knowledge and appreciation of the language's culture, and is preparation for Honors Level Four.

Each unit of the text ends with one or more reading selections related to the theme of the unit. Selections range from letters and comic strips to poems and short stories. Some come from contemporary newspapers and magazines, while others are drawn from literature. These are read by students for global comprehension of content. Students will also have the opportunity to learn about current events and trends in the countries corresponding with the target language by reading authentic printed materials as well as online resources.

Students are provided the opportunity to express their opinion in the target language to provoke meaningful discussion related to the themes of the unit. Assignments, oral and written, continue on a regular basis. Assessments are designed to measure proficiency in all modes of communication: interpersonal, interpretive and presentational. This course is conducted primarily in the target language.

HONORS LATIN, LEVEL III (+) (YR)

Latin III begins with a thorough review of the grammar studied in Levels One and Two. The course continues with more advanced readings and writing, using Latin selections from authors such as Caesar (The Gallic Wars), Pliny (letters), Martial (epigrams), Livy (history), and Ovid (Metamorphoses). Mythology and Roman history, along with derivative study, are expanded. Group and individual projects, both oral and written, remain part of the curriculum.

FRENCH, LEVEL IV (+) (YR) SPANISH, LEVEL IV (+) (YR)

Most students enrolled in this course will have successfully completed Level III. This course is not intended to prepare students for AP Language. In Level Four, the primary goal is to further develop students' proficiency in the target language and to offer more in-depth study of the culture. The course is based on a video series, and reviews all grammar taught in Level One through Level Three. One or more reading sections complete each unit. Students are provided the opportunity to personalize the material and to express their opinions on a regular basis. This course is conducted primarily in the target language.

GERMAN, LEVEL IV (+) (YR)

Most students enrolled in this course will have successfully completed Level III. This course is not intended to prepare students for AP Language. In Level IV, the primary goal is to further develop student proficiency in the target language. It also aims to increase the student's knowledge of more advanced grammar, and offer more in-depth study of the culture in the target language. One or more reading selections complete each unit with additional authentic materials, such as newspapers, magazines, and news broadcast incorporated for global language comprehension. Students are provided the opportunity to personalize the material and to express their opinions on a regular basis. This course is conducted primarily in the target language.

HONORS FRENCH, LEVEL IV (+) (YR) HONORS GERMAN, LEVEL IV (+) (YR) HONORS SPANISH, LEVEL IV (+) (YR)

Students enrolled in the Honors Level IV course of a language will have successfully completed the Honors Level III course. In Honors Level Four, students are encouraged to use spontaneous expression through extensive oral and written practice. The primary goal is that students continue to gain proficiency in the three modes of communication: interpretive, interpersonal and presentational. The course includes use of textbooks emphasizing grammar and vocabulary along with the incorporation of authentic materials such as short stories, newspaper articles, news broadcasts, poetry, music, advertisements and a multitude of online resources. Incorporating these authentic materials allows for a more in-depth study of the culture of the target language. Supplementary exercises reinforce student proficiency and help prepare for achievement and proficiency tests as required by some colleges. This course is conducted primarily in the target language.

HONORS LATIN, LEVEL IV (YR)

Honors Latin IV expands on the knowledge, understandings, and skills students gained earlier in the course sequence. Specifically, students focus on improving their translation and communication in Latin by reading original and adapted Latin; Latin authors and texts studied in the fourth year include Augustus (*Res Gestae*), Vergil, (*Aeneid*), and Ovid (*Metamorphoses; Amores*). The study of vocabulary, derivatives, and the nature of linguistics as it relates to English and Latin continues to be an important part of the Latin curriculum in Honors IV. Students continue to investigate Roman culture and history to make comparisons with and analysis of their own culture and history.

AP FRENCH LANGUAGE AND CULTURE (+) (YR) AP GERMAN LANGUAGE AND CULTURE (+) (YR) AP SPANISH LANGUAGE AND CULTURE (+) (YR)

Students taking the AP course in World Language are self-motivated and independent learners who enjoy studying the target language. The course resembles a university course as it is demanding and moves at an accelerated pace. The course is taught in an environment of total immersion. Through more in-depth study of grammar and the analysis of literature in various media forms, students will increase their proficiency in the target language. Courses are designed around six themes, where teachers can integrate linguistic and cultural aspects, promoting the use of the language in a variety of contexts. Students are required to express their opinions and reactions in all modes of communication: interpretive, interpersonal and presentational. Students will realize the interconnectedness of the themes which will prepare them to take the AP exam offered by the College Board's Advanced Placement Program.

2019 DATES TO REMEMBER

COUNCIL ROCK HIGH SCHOOL NORTH

January 7, 2019	Evening orientation for parents of students in grades 8-11 in the high school auditorium. Administrators, counselors, and department coordinators will be available.
January 9, 2019	Snow Date for evening orientation.
January/February	Orientation for grade 8 students.
January 7, 2019 to January 29, 2019	Students in grade 9-11 meet with classroom teachers for course recommendations.
January 29, 2019	End of second marking period.
January 30, 2019 to March 1, 2019	Counselors meet with students to finalize student course requests for 2019-2020.
May 1, 2019	Final opportunity to change course requests.

COUNCIL ROCK HIGH SCHOOL SOUTH

January 8, 2019	Evening orientation for parents of students in grades 8-11 in the high school auditorium. Administrators, counselors, and department coordinators will be available.
January 15, 2019	Snow Date for evening orientation.
January/February	Orientation for grade 8 students.
January 7, 2019 to January 29, 2019	Students in grade 9-11 meet with classroom teachers for course recommendations.
January 29, 2019	End of second marking period.
January 30, 2019 to March 1, 2019	Counselors meet with students to finalize student course requests for 2019-2020.
May 1, 2019	Final opportunity to change course requests.